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NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE PROFILE
Nutritional Holdings is a manufacturer and distributor of fortified staple food products as well as a range of medicines
registered with the South African Medical Control Council and other complimentary natural medicines. The Group’s
manufacturing and marketing operations are complemented by its research and development capabilities. Nutritional
Holding’s ability to deliver an affordable range of nutritionally fortified dry-food products, aims to address the malnutrition
and immune deficiency problems in the Southern Africa region.
The Nutritional Holdings Group comprises three established business units in the fortified dry foodstuffs, nutraceutical
and pharmaceutical space. The Group manufactures a wide range of nutritional formulated food stuffs and supplements
manufactured from soya, sorghum and maize at it’s ISO 22000 accredited factory in Klerksdorp as well as a range of
basic family healthcare medicines registered with the Medicines Control Council and other non-registered
complimentary medicines.

VISION
Nutritional Holding’s vision is to develop and provide nutritious and affordable dry-food products to the African market to
alleviate malnutrition and actively promote the socio-economic well-being for South Africans and throughout subSaharan Africa.

MISSION STATEMENT
Nutritional Holding’s mission is to be the preferred supplier of dry foodstuffs to the Southern African consumer as well as
a healthcare service supplier to the lower and middle-income segments of the Southern African market culminating in
sustainable returns for shareholders.
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DIRECTORATE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Thabo Vincent Mokgatlha CA(SA) (Chief Executive Officer) (41)
- Appointed 1 January 2015
Mr Mokgatlha is a registered Chartered Accountant(SA). Thabo served his 3 year articles at Coopers and Lybrand (now
PWC) from 1995 to 1997. He spent his last 6 months of articles as a senior lecturer (Accounting and taxation) at the
UNW. At the beginning of 1998 he was appointed on a full-time basis as a senior lecturer at the UNW and also joined
Mokua and Associates CA(SA) consulting for the North West Provincial Government and the Office of the Auditor
General in the North West during his lecturing years.
In March 2002 Thabo joined the Royal Bafokeng Administration (RBA) as Finance Manager and was employed by the
RBN group until December 2011. He has served in numerous positions in the RBN group including the positions of
Finance Manager of Royal Bafokeng Resources, Head of Treasury in office of Kgosi, Acting CEO of RBA and Royal
Bafokeng Enterprise Development.
Thabo currently serves on the following JSE listed boards:
•
•
•

York Timbers Limited
Hyprop investments Limited
Astrapak Limited

Having previously served on the boards of
• Impala Platinum Limited
• Rand merchant Insurance Holdings Limited
• South African Coal Mines Holdings Limited
Robert Stephen Etchells (Rob)(Group Financial Director and Chief Operating Officer) (48)
- Appointed 30 November 2012
Mr Etchells has a BCompt (Hons) CTA. Rob served his articles with Deloitte Haskins & Sells between 1985 and 1988.
He completed a Post Graduate Diploma in Management Development at the University of Cape Town’s Graduate
School of Business. With twenty one years’ experience in both financial management and general management, Mr
Etchells has overseen the turnaround of various businesses and is also a reputable entrepreneur with a hands on
management approach. Rob previously served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group until the appointment of
Thabo Mokgatlha as Chief Executive Officer on the 1 January 2015.
Ian Murgatroyd (Director)(40)
- Appointed 15 April 2016
Mr Murgatroyd is a Management Accountant having worked in a number of sectors in both South Africa and the UK. He
has been employed in a number of financial and group reporting roles in the Pharmaceutical, FMCG and Agriculture
sectors. In recent years Ian has been involved in a senior management role whereby he was the GM at Futurelife from
2010 until 2015. He has been involved in the development and supply of a range of infant formulas to the Department
of Health in terms of the national tender.
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Glen Rowan Wambach (Independent non-executive director and chairman) (55)
- Appointed 4 March 2011
Mr Wambach has completed a number of courses in the medical field. Glen has spent his entire working career in the
medical and pharmaceutical industry and is currently employed with a leading Medical Aid administrator.
Anthony Richard Pinfold (Independent non-executive director) (72)
- Appointed 12 March 2013
Mr Pinfold has vast trading experience within the African continent as well as Asia. He was Chairman of Great Wall
Motors (SA) Proprietary Limited since 2007 having retired recently from this position.
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Dr Constantinous Kapnias (Independent non-executive director) MBChB (UCT), BLS, ATLS (49)
- Appointed 15 August 2014
Dr Kapnias is a medical doctor who has been in private practice since 1993. In 2006 Dr Kapnias shifted his attention to
the wellness and nutraceutical industry, having owned various companies in the preventative medicine market. He has
been involved in sports performance and sports injury rehabilitation and has worked with various international athletes
and sports teams over the years. Dr Kapnias has been involved in HIV research for a number of years having
collaborated with Prof. Richard Bunn from the Medical Research Council of South Africa

GROUP ACTIVITIES
FOOD DIVISION
Nutritional Foods (Proprietary) Limited
Nutritional Foods, which is located in Klerksdorp, owns a mass production, dry food,
manufacturing facility. The company formulates, manufactures and sells a large range of
fortified dry-food products and supplements.
The companies brands are well established within the LSM 3-6 market place. In addition it
has a wide range of catering products serving the industrial catering throughout Southern
Africa and recently introduced a range of high protein family breakfast cereals for the LSM
8-10 market segment.

OUR BRANDS
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PHARMACEUTICAL DIVISION

Impilo Drugs (1966) (Proprietary) Limited “Impilo”
Implio markets a range of basic family health care products via a licensing agreement with
Avid Brands (Proprietary) Limited (“AVID”). In terms of the agreement AVID manufacture,
market and distribute the products directly to pharmacies for their own risk and reward.
Impilo is paid a royalty fee of 10% of the net invoiced value of all sales with guaranteed
minimum turnover targets. The range of products includes registered medicines with the
South African Medicines Control Council as well as certain nutraceutical complimentary
medicines.

Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited “I H S”
IHS markets and distributes a range of “chlorine free” water purification products under
license from the manufacturers ACN Chemicals UK Limited. These products include “point
of use” water purification drops called OneDrop as well as BacSan, an industrial
application for use by municipalities and other bulk water suppliers. Both products carry
certification from the CSIR. One Drop has been listed and is currently supplied to various
major retail chains, including Wallmart’s Africa Division Mass Mart and has placement in all
Game Stores across Africa.
Distributors of the “Nutri-Pack”. A 30-day, nutritional food supplementation pack, which
promotes a healthy immune system.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Group Turnover of R 38 269 million was 1.4% up on the R 37 753 million of the previous year.
Gearing remains very low at less than 2%.

REVENUE (R’000)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT (LOSS) (R’000)

2016

- R38 269

2016

2015

- R37 753

2015 1 743

(5 474)

2014

- R36 284

2014

(6 151)

2013

- R34 178

2013

(13 433)

2012

4 731

2012

- R41 212

HEADLINE (LOSS) PER SHARE (cents)

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (cents)

2016

(0.16)

2016

1.2

2015

(0.15)

2015

1.3

2014

(0.32)

2014

1.6

2013

(0.41)

2013

1.9

2012

(0.35)

2012

2.7
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FIVE-YEAR REVIEW
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW
The senior management that was tasked with the continued turn-around strategy for this financial year have achieved a great deal
headed up by Thabo Mokgatlha and Rob Etchells. This process continued to be very challenging but they have done a superb job in
improving production efficiencies and reducing costs substantially and have targeted new channels for business which have started to
reap benefits. There have been numerous challenges through the year and continued to look for a suitable investment partner.
Management continues to focus on ways to improve its routes to market in line with market needs and requirements and is looking at
some of the opportunities outside South Africa in Africa. The overhead and production costs are under constant review and well
contained. Strong corporate governance and restoring the corporate image of the Group is also high on the agenda.
With the South African government’s initiatives to promote job creation through manufacturing, Nutritional Holdings will continue to
play its role which will benefit the shareholders.
I believe that Nutritional Holdings has turned the corner and I am confident that the results next year will indicate a positive outcome
as a result of the growth strategies and renewed focus currently being implemented.
SUSTAINABLITY
We understand the need to ensure long-term sustainability for the Group, which will be achieved through a return to profitability.

We continue to identify the risks associated with this stage of Nutritional Holdings’ business cycle and to ensure that
management has mitigated risk as best as practical under the circumstances. We continue to investigate new markets
and opportunities.
Expansion of our activities will be done cautiously until we have established a platform of sustainable profitability and a
strong financial base. Shareholders are cautioned that until we have established this stage, the Group is unlikely to pay
dividends.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The recommendations and requirements of the King III report on Corporate Governance and the regulations of the JSE
form an integral part of the corporate governance framework within which Nutritional Holdings Limited operates.
APPRECIATION
I would like to thank all our business partners for their support during the year and I remain grateful for the support of the
board, shareholders, customers, suppliers, staff and other stakeholders of the Nutritional Holdings Group.
G R Wambach
Chairman
20 May 2016
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
INTRODUCTION
Having concluded the BEE transaction in the 2015 financial year the group has continued to face adverse market
conditions due to high increases in the price of basic foods resulting in consumers reducing their spending patterns.
Though our prices were adjusted the price adjustment achieved was less than the increase in the cost of raw inputs
thus having a negative impact on margins.
A further strategic introduction of an equity investor with direct access to their captured market was negotiated and
agreed to, subject to payment of the purchase consideration by the investor on/or before the 31st of December 2015.
The investor, however, failed to effect payment resulting in the cancelation of the transaction. We have continued with a
drive to gain access into that captured market and anticipate a positive outcome in this regard. The impact of this drive
should come through in the second part of the 2017 financial year.
The Company has continued to seek opportunities to unlock the full potential of the Klerksdorp factory as well as
increase the sales volumes of our water purification products. Given the current water crisis in the country and the
SADC region , we are anticipating a growth in this area of business in the new financial year.
Mr Ian Murgatroyd, has been appointed as Commercial Director of Nutritional Holdings Ltd with effect from the 15th April
2016. I would like to take the opportunity to welcome Ian to the Group. Ian has over 12 years experience in FMCG
markets having worked for various national leading FMCG food brand companies.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Group Turnover of R38,269 million, 1 % up on the R 37,753 million of the previous corresponding period. The headline
loss increased by 0,01c from a headline loss of 0,15c to 0,16c per share.
TV MOKGATHLA
Chief Executive Officer
20 May 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate governance requires the identification of the group’s stakeholders and the agreement on and implementation
of policies to manage and advance the relationship with those stakeholders in the interest of the group. It also
embraces the adoption and monitoring of sound and effective systems of internal control, the assessment and
management of business risks and the definition and implementation of appropriate business procedures.
The directors of Nutritional Holdings regard corporate governance as vitally important to the success of the group’s
business and are unreservedly committed to applying the principles necessary to ensure that good governance is
practiced. For this they accept full responsibility. These principles include discipline, independence, responsibility,
fairness, social responsibility, transparency and accountability of the directors to all stakeholders. Corporate
governance within the group is managed by a unitary board of directors and several sub-committees of the board.
The board is of the opinion that the group has complied throughout the accounting period with all the objectives
incorporated in the King Code of Governance Principles and the King Report on Governance for South Africa 2009 (“the
King Code”) and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE Listing Requirements”) except as set out below. A
summary of the extent of the company’s compliance with the King Code is set out below:
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Principle

Statement addressing the extent of the application /
reason for non-compliance

Ethical Leadership and Corporate Citizenship
Principle 1.1: The board should provide effective leadership
based on an ethical foundation

The board fully complies. Ethics form part of the values of the
company and its board.
The board provides effective
leadership based on an ethical foundation.

Principle 1.2: The board should ensure that the company is,
and is seen to be, a responsible citizen

The board fully complies. Projects applicable to corporate
social (re) investment are considered and assessed on a
continual basis while the board ensures that the company is,
and is perceived to be, a responsible corporate citizen.

Principle 1.3: The board should ensure that the company’s
ethics are managed effectively

The board fully complies. Ethical principles are applied, as a
matter of course, during all decision-making processes.

Role and function of the board
Principle 2.1: The board should act as the focal point for and
custodian of corporate governance

The board as a whole is fully committed to complying with
corporate governance principles.

Principle 2.2: The board should appreciate that strategy, risk,
performance and sustainability are inseparable
Principle 2.3: The board should provide effective leadership
based on an ethical foundation
Principle 2.4: The board should ensure that the company is
and is seen to be a responsible corporate citizen
Principle 2.5: The board should ensure that the company’s
ethics are managed effectively

The board agrees with this and regularly reviews these topics.

Principle 2.6: The board should ensure that the company has
an effective and independent audit committee

Currently the company has three non executives on the Audit
and risk committee of which two are independent and one is
the Chairman of the Board

Principle 2.7: The board should be responsible for the
governance of risk

The Audit and Risk Committee presents the risk register to the
board for approval and review on a continuing basis and takes
appropriate action when necessary.

Principle 2.8: The board should be responsible for information
technology (IT) governance

The Audit and Risk Committee have been tasked with this
function and reports to the board.

Principle 2.9: The board should ensure that the company
complies with applicable laws and considers adherence to
non-binding rules, codes and standards
Principle 2.10: The board should ensure that there is an
effective risk-based internal audit

The board fully complies with this principle.

Principle 2.11: The board should appreciate that stakeholders’
perceptions affect the company’s reputation

The board fully complies with this principle.

Principle 2.12: The board should ensure the integrity of the
company’s integrated report
Principle 2.13: The board should report on the effectiveness of
the company’s system of internal controls
Principle 2.14: The board and its directors should act in the
best interests of the company

The board fully complies with this principle.

Principle 2.15: The board should consider business rescue
proceedings or other turnaround mechanisms as soon as the

The board is fully aware of this principle and will comply if

The board fully complies with this principle
The board fully complies with this principle
The Social and Ethics committee has been tasked to perform
this function and complies fully.

No internal audit function exists but this is being considered by
the Board. The executive directors are also directors of the
subsidiaries and are directly involved in the day to day
operations of the subsidiaries

The board fully complies with this principle.
The board as a whole and the directors individually fully
comply with this principle.
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company is financially distressed as defined in the Act

necessary.

Principle 2.16: The board should elect a chairman of the board
who is an independent non-executive director. The CEO of the
company should not also fulfill the role of chairman of the
board
Principle 2.17: The board should appoint the chief executive
officer and establish a framework for the
delegation of authority
Principle 2.18: The board should comprise a balance of
power, with a majority of non-executive directors.
The
majority on non-executive directors should be independent

The role of CEO and Chairman are not fulfilled by the same
person and the Chairman of the Board is independent

Principle 2.19: Directors should be appointed through a formal
process

The board fully complies with this principle. New directors are
appointed through a formal process.

Principle 2.20: The induction of and ongoing training and
development of directors should be conducted through formal
processes.

The nature of the business does not warrant a formal
induction process. New directors have unlimited access to the
company’s resources in order to familarise themselves with all
matters related to the company.

Principle 2.21: The board should ne assisted by a competent,
suitably qualified and experienced company secretary

The board fully complies with this principle. The board is
assisted by a suitably qualified and experienced secretary.

Principle 2.22: The evaluation of the board, its committees
and the individual directors should be performed every year

The board fully complies with this principle. The board, its
committees and its individual directors are evaluated on an
annual basis.

Principle 2.23: The board should delegate certain functons to
well-structured committees without abdicating its own
responsibilities

The board fully complies with this principle. Committees
recommendations, which are considered (and if deemed
appropriate) approved at board level.

Principle 2.24: A governance framework should be agreed
between the group and its subsidiariy boards

The board fully complies with this principle give that the
directors who serve on the boards of the subsidiaries are also
directors of the company, the board is of the view that it is not
necessary to formulate a governance framework between
Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries. The situation will be
continuosly monitored.

Principle 2.25: Companies should remunerate directors and
executives fairly and responsibly

The board fully complies with this principle. Non-executive
directors are remunerated by the company.
Executive
directors are remunerated via the company and subsidiaries

Principle 2.26: Companies should disclose the remuneration
of each individual director and certain senior executives

The board fully complies with this principle. The remuneration
of each individual director is disclosed in the annual report.

Principle 2.27: Shareholders should approve the company’s
remuneration policy.

The board does not fully comply with this principle. The
remuneration committee reviews salary trends in the market
place and recommends emolument structures and levels to
the board for consideration and approval. No one structure
suites every company due to the different nature of each
operation. Non-executive directors remuneration is approved
by the shareholders though.

The board fully complies with this principle.

During the current financial year the board fully complied with
this princilple. Only on the appointemnt of Mr I Murgatroyd in
April 2016 did the board change to consist of fifty percent nonexecutive directors and fifty percent of executive directors.
This will be addressed during the current year

Audit Committees
Principle 3.1: The board should ensure that the company has
an effective and independent audit committee

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee consists of three independent directors.

Principle 3.2: Audit committee members should be suitably
skilled and experienced independent non-executive directors
(subsidiary exemption)
Principle 3.3: The audit committee should be chaired by and
independent non-executive director

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee members are suitably skilled and experiences.

Principle 3.4: The audit committees should oversee the
integrated
reporting
(integrated
reporting,
financial,

The board fully complies with this principle. These function

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
director.
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sustainability and summarised information).

are performed by the audit and risk committee.

The audit committee should be responsible for evaluating the
significant judgements and reporting decisions affecting the
integrated report.
The audit committee’s review of the financial reports should
encompass the annual financial statements, interim reports,
preliminary or provisional result announcements, summarised
integrated information, any other intended release of pricesensitive financial information, trading statements, circulars
and similar documents
Principle 3.5: The audit committee should ensure that a
combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated approach to all assurance activities.

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee ensures that a combined assurance model is
applied.

Principle 3.6: The audit committee should satisfy itself of the
expertise, resources and experience of the company’s finance
function
Principle 3.7: The audit committee should be responsible for
overseeing of internal audit.
Principle 3.8: The audit committee should be an integral
component of the risk management process

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee has satisfied itself in this regard.

Principle 3.9: The audit committee is responsible for
recommending the appointmnt of the external auditor and
overseeing the external audit process
Principle 3.10: The audit committee should report to the board
and shareholders on how it has discharged its duties

The board fully complies with this principle. This forms part of
the audit and risk committee’s roles and responsibilities.

The board complies where applicable.
The board fully complies with this principle. This forms part of
the audit and risk committee’s role and function.

The board fully complies with this principle. Reported on at a
board level by the chairman of the audit and risk committee
and to shareholders via the annual report.

The Governance of Risk
Principle 4.1: The board should be responsible for the
governance of risk

The board fully complies with this principle. Risk is governed
by the board as a whole.

Principle 4.2: The board should determine the levels of risk
tolerance

The board fully complies with this principle. Risk tolerance
levels are discussed and considered by the board.

Principle 4.3: The risk committee or audit committee should
assist the board in carrying out its risk responsibilities

The board fully complies with this principle. Performed by the
audit and risk committee

Principle 4.4: The board should delegate to management the
responsibility to design, implement and monitor the risk
management plan

The board fully complies with this principle. The board has
delegated to the executive committee the responsibility of
designing, implementing and monitoring the risk management
plan.

Principle 4.5: The board should ensure that risk assessments
are performed on a continual basis

The board fully complies with this principle.
performs risk assessment on a continual basis.

Principle 4.6: The board should ensure that framework and
methodologies are implemented to increase the probability of
anticipating unpredictable risks.
Principle 4.7: The board should ensure that management
considers and implements appropriate risk responses

The board fully complies with this principle. All risk factors
within the current business model are continually monitored.

Principle 4.8: The board should ensure continual risk
monitoring by management

The board fully complies with this principle. Risk-monitoring
forms part of all planning and decision making.

Principle 4.9: The board should receive assurance regarding
the effectiveness of the risk management process

The board fully complies with this principle. This assurance
occurs at board level.

Principle 4.10: The board should ensure that there are
processes in place enabling complete, timely,relevant,
accurate and accessible risk disclosure to stakeholders

The board fully complies with this principle. Disclosed in the
annual integrated report. Further disclosures are assessed
when needed.

The board

The board fully complies with this principle. Responses are
continually monitored.

The Governance of Information Technology
Principle 5.1: The board should be responsible for information
technology (IT) governance

The board fully complies with this principle.

The board is
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responsible for IT governance.
Principle 5.2: IT should be aligned with the performance and
sustainability objectives of the company

The board fully complies with this principle. IT is aligned with
the performance and sustainability objectives of the company.

Principle 5.3: The board should delegate to management the
responsibility for the implementaton of an IT governance
framework.

The board fully complies with this principle. Management is
responsible for the implementation of an IT governance
framework.

Principle 5.4: The board should monitor and evaluate
significant IT investments and expenditure.

The board fully complies with this principle. The board
monitors and evaluates significant IT investments and
expenditure.

Principle 5.5: IT should form an integral part of the company’s
risk management

The board fully complies with this principle. IT is considered
part of risk management.

Principle 5.6: The board should ensure that information assets
are managed effectively

The board fully complies with this principle. The board is
comfortable with the current practice.

Principle 5.7: A risk committee and audit committee should
assist the board in carrying out its IT responsibilities

The board fully complies with this principle. The audit and risk
committee assists the board in carrying out its IT
responsibilities.

Compliance with Laws, Codes, Rules and Standards
Principle 6.1: The board should ensure that the company
complies with applicable laws and considers adherence to
non-binding rules, codes and standards

The board fully complies with this principle. The board
continually considers applicable laws, codes, rules and
standards and changes applicable thereto.

Principle 6.2: The board and each individual director should
have a working understanding of the effect of the applicable
laws, rules, codes and standards on the company and its
business

The board fully complies with this principle. The board and
each individual director has a working understanding of the
effect of the applicable laws, rules, codes and standards on
the company and its operations.

Principle 6.3: Compliance risk should form an integral part of
the company’s risk management proces

The board fully complies with this principle. Compliance forms
part of all risk management processes.

Principle 6.4: The board should delegate to management the
implementation of an effective compliance framework and
processes

The board fully complies with this principle. This performed by
the company management with the assistance of the
executive committee.

Internal Audit
Principle 7.1: The board should ensure that there is an
effective risk-based internal audit

The board does not fully comply with this principle as a
separate internal audit function is not performed however the
audit and risk committee continually reviews the necessity.

Principle 7.2: Internal audit should follow a risk-based
approach to its plan

When applicable internal audit follows a risk-based approach

Principle 7.3: Internal audit should provide a written
assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s system of
internal control and risk management

When applicable a written assessment is presented to the
audit and risk committee

Principle 7.4: The audit committee should be responsible for
overseeing internal audit

This forms part of the audit and risk committees roles and
responsibilities.

Principle 7.5: Internal audit should be stategically positioned to
achieve its objectives

When applicable this internal audit is strategically positioned.

Governing Stakeholders Relationships
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Principle 8.1 The board should appreciate that stakeholder
perceptions affect a company’s reputation

The board fully complies with this principle. The board
continualy monitors stakeholder’ perceptions as the
company’s reputation is considered important to its
sustainable success.

Principle 8.2: The board should delegate to management to
proactively deal with stakeholders relationships

The board fully complies with this principle. Stakeholder
relationships are critical to the success of the company and
are maintained by the company’s executive committee.

Principle 8.3: The board strive to achieve the appropriate
balance between its various stakeholder groupings, in the best
interests of the company

The board fully complies with this principle. All stakeholders
are considered in the company’s decision-making processes.

Principle 8.4:
Companies should ensure the equitable
treatment of shareholders

The board fully complies with this principle. Equal treatment
of stakeholders is considered vital to the board, which ensures
the integrity, completeness, accuracy and usability of the
company’s annual report.

Principle 8.5: Transparent and effective communication with
stakeholders is essential for building and maintaining their
trust and confidence

The board fully complies with this principle. Communication
with stakeholders is the responsibility of the executive
committee and the company secretary.

Principle 8.6: The board should ensure that disputes are
resolved as effectively, efficiently and expeditiously as
possible.

The board fully complies with this principle. The board is
informed of any disputes to ensure speedy and effective
resolution thereof.

Integrated Reporting and Disclosure
Principle 9.1: The board should ensure the integrity of the
company’s integrated report

The board fully complies with this principle. The board
ensures the integrity completeness and usability of the
company’s annual report.

Principle 9.2: Sustainability reporting and disclosure should
be integrated with the company’s financial reporting

The board fully complies with this principle. Sustainability
reporting and disclosure are incorporated in the company’s
annual report.

Principle 9.3: Sustainability reporting and disclosure should
be independently assured.

The board fully compliew with this principle.
Where
appropriate, non-financial information disclosed in the
company’s annual report has been independently assured.

JSE
The JSE Listings Requirements require that the Group report on the extent of its compliance with King III. The Group
has committed itself to the adoption of King III and details of the company’s compliance to its recommendations are
provided below.
Board of Directors
The board of directors maintains full and effective control over the affairs of the Group. In terms of the governance
philosophy of the Group, a clear division of responsibilities at board level ensures a balance of power and authority,
such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision-making.
The non-executive directors are high calibre professionals and are sufficient in number for their independent views to
carry significant weight in the board’s deliberations and decisions. They are independent of management and are free to
make their own decisions and independent judgments. They enjoy no benefits from the Group for their services as
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directors, other than their fees and the potential gains and dividends on their interests in ordinary shares. No share
options are granted to non-executive directors.
The Group operates in terms of a formally approved Board Charter which sets out its role and responsibilities, the main
elements being:
- Nominations for appointment to the board are formal and transparent and submitted to the full board for
consideration.
- The Chairman of the board must be an independent, non-executive director;
- A formal orientation programme for new directors must be followed;
- Specific policies, in line with King III, must exist with regard to conflicts of interest and the maintenance of a
register of directors’ interests;
- They must conduct an annual self-evaluation;
- Directors must have access to staff, records and the advice and services of the Company Secretary;
- Succession planning for executive management must be in place and must be updated regularly;
- Strategic plans and approvals framework must be in place and must be reviewed regularly;
- Policies to ensure the integrity of internal controls and risk management must be in place;
- Social transformation, ethics, safety, health, human capital and environmental management policies and
practices must be monitored and reported on regularly.
Appointments to the board are formal, transparent and a matter for the board as a whole. Curricula vitae are obtained,
and circulated to all board members. Interviews are conducted with the short listed people. Appointments are then
made by a board resolution.
Any appointments to the board are made taking into account the need for ensuring that the board provides a diverse
range of skills, knowledge and expertise, the requisite independence, the necessity of achieving a balance between
skills and expertise and the professional and industry knowledge necessary to meet the Group’s strategic objectives.
The Board meets at least quarterly on a formal basis. Additional meetings are arranged where deemed necessary. A
detailed breakdown of each director’s attendance at the meetings concerned is indicated below.
Attendance of directors at board meetings during the year under review.
15 May 2015
GR Wambach (chairman)
TV Mokgathla
TR Hendry *
AR Pinfold
RS Etchells
Dr C Kapnias
* resigned 12 February 2016

x
x
x
x
x

28 August 2015
x
x
x
x
x

27 November 2015
x
x
x
x

26 February 2016
x
x
x
x

To enable the board to properly discharge its responsibilities and duties, certain responsibilities of the board have been
delegated to board committees. All board committees are chaired by an independent non-executive director. Board
committee charters are reviewed on an on-going basis to ensure that the committees’ duties and responsibilities are
aligned with the requirements of corporate governance and keep abreast of developments in this field.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a statutory committee according to the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008
and in terms of the recommendations set out in King III, shareholders are required to elect the members of this
committee at the company’s next annual general meeting.
Audit and risk management committee
Mr TR Hendry, an independent non-executive director, chaired the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The
members, who are non-executive directors, meet at least twice a year with management and external auditors. Mr GR
Wambach who is also chairman of the board of directors, remains a member as an independent non-executive director.
Mr Wambach’s appointment does not comply with King III in that he is chairman of the board and also a member of the
audit and risk management committee.
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The Group believes that the members of the committee are knowledgeable about the affairs of the Group and have
extensive expertise in finance, accounting and risk management practices.
Audit and Risk Management Committee Responsibilities
The Audit and Risk Management Committee fulfills the responsibilities as set out in the Audit and Risk Management
Committee Charter, which includes:
- Overseeing the internal and external audit function;
- Assisting the board in the discharge of its duties relating to the safeguarding of the Group’s assets and
operation of adequate systems and internal controls;
- Ensuring the preparation of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable
legal requirements, corporate governance and accounting standards;
- Providing support to the board on the risk profile and risk management of the Group;
- Evaluating and confirming the independence of the external audit function and
- Reviewing the expertise, resources and experience of the Group Financial Director.
Committee members have unlimited access to all information, documents and explanations required to discharge of
their duties. This authority has been extended to the external auditors. The board is provided with regular reports on
the activities of the committee. Additional information regarding the Committee is contained in the Report of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee on page 19.
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee presently consists of two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director. The committee meets at least twice a year and operates according to a boardapproved charter.
Members of the committee:
AR Pinfold - Non-executive director
GR Wambach – Independent Non-executive director
TR Hendry – Independent Non-executive director - resigned 12 February 2016
C Kapnias – Independent Non-executive director – appointed 26 February 2016
Consideration is given during the meetings to succession planning, training and development, employment equity,
broad-based black economic empowerment, human resources policies, wellness programmes and remuneration of
management and executive and non-executive directors.
The remuneration policy focuses on market-related payments to management and directors with the objective to retain
the services of capable individuals.
ATTENDANCE OF THE CURRENT MEMBERS AT HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Meetings attended
AR Pinfold
2/2
GR Wambach
2/2
TR Hendry *
1/2
C Kapnias **
*Director resigned during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings
**Director appointed during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings
Social and Ethics committee
The functions and responsibilities of the committee is to monitor the company’s activities with regards to matters relating
to:
- social and economic development;
- issues of good corporate citizenship, including promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination,
reduction of corruption and contribution to development of communities;
- the company’s record in charitable donations and sponsorships;
- the enviroment, health and safety issues;
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-

consumer relationships and the company’s compliance with consumer protection laws;
labour and employment, including the company’s observance of the International Labour Organisation
Protocols and contributions towards educational development of its employees; and
drawing matters within its mandate to the attention of the board as the occasion requires.

The social and ethics committee is constituted as follows:
AR Pinfold (Chairman) – independent non-executive director - appointed 1 May 2012
JA Etchells – company secretary - appointed 1 May 2012
TV Mokgathla – executive director - appointed 1 January 2015
Executive remuneration policies
The executive remuneration policies are designed within the framework of the company’s reward strategy to attract,
motivate, reward and retain the caliber of executives needed to run the group successfully, while aligning their interests
with those of the shareholders.
The policies conform to the best practice guidelines contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance for South
Africa.
Remuneration is made up of the following components:
- guaranteed pay
- Share option incentives
- Annual incentive bonuses
Non-executive Directors fees
Governance of directors remuneration is undertaken by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The fees
for non executive directors are recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and approved in
advance by shareholders at the annual general meeting. Fees for 2015/2016 financial year were reviewed by the
committee and the board and approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting in July 2015. These fees apply
until the next annual general meeting. Although the fees were approved, all of the non- executive directors, with the
exception of the Chairman, elected not to receive fees for the current year. An amount R25,000 was paid during the
current financial year to the Chairman.
Restrictions on share dealings
Directors and employees are prohibited from dealing in Nutritional Holding’s shares during price-sensitive periods.
There is a formal clearance procedure in place with respect to directors’ dealings in Nutritional Holding’s shares. Closed
periods extend from 31 August and 28 February, being the commencement of the interim and year-end reporting dates,
respectively, up to the date of announcement of interim and year-end results, and include any other period during which
the company is trading under a cautionary announcement.
All directors are required to obtain written permission from the Chairman before dealing in any Nutritional Holdings
shares in order to protect them against possible and unintentional contravention of the insider trading laws and stock
exchange regulations.
Relationship with the Shareholders and Stakeholders
Management maintained communication with shareholders through SENS announcements and regular information on
the official Nutritional Holding’s Limited website – www.nholdings.co.za.
Company Secretary
Mrs Jennifer Ann Etchells (“Jenny”) is a Chartered Accountant (SA) as well as a Master Tax Practitioner (SA). She holds
a BCompt (Hons) degree as well as a HDipp tax degree. Jenny qualified as a Chartered Accountant (SA) in 1987 and
has worked in the audit, tax and accounting industry for twenty eight years, twenty years of which as a Partner of
Deloitte, BDO Spencer Stewart and her own Auditing practice. She has ten years’ experience with three JSE listed
companies. In addition, Jenny served as the Financial Director of two JSE listed companies, Argent Industrial Limited
and subsequently Nutritional Holdings Limited for three and a half years. During her time in the audit, tax and accounting
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industry as well as in her position as Financial Director, she gained a vast amount of experience in the requirements
needed to fill the position as a Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary provides guidance to the directors on their duties and ensures awareness of all relevant
statutory requirements and legislation. All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
who at the Group’s expense will arrange independent professional advice for the directors where the directors request it.
In keeping with the JSE Listings Requirements, the Board of directors has conducted an annual review of the Company
Secretary and is satisfied with the competence, qualifications and experience of the Company Secretary. The Board is
also satisfied that the Company Secretary maintains an arms-length relationship with members of the Board as the
Company Secretary.
The certificate required to be signed in terms of section 88 of the Companies Act appears on page 28.
Going Concern
Attention is drawn to the fact that at 29 February 2016, the Group had accumulated losses of R116,414 million (2015:
R110,943 million).
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and the realization of assets and settlement
of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of
these is that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the Group.
The Group’s gearing ratio remains low at 2%.
Code of Ethics
The Group’s ethics policy requires all employees to act with the utmost good faith and integrity and compliance to the
applicable legislation. This ensures that Nutritional Holdings remains committed to conducting business in a manner that
is above reproach in all reasonable circumstances. In addition, the Group strives to provide a work environment that is
non-discriminatory with sound safety, health and environmental practices.
Interests of Directors
The company secretary keeps a register of directors’ interest in contracts in terms of the Companies Act. The register is
available for inspection upon request by those who are entitled to access. The directors have declared their interest in
contracts or arrangements entered into by the company or its subsidiaries. Directors are required to inform the board
timeously of conflicts of interest they may have in relation to the business and are consequently excluded from voting on
such terms.
Integrated sustainability reporting
On page 22 to 25 is the sustainability report which is a review of the nature and extent of the company’s social
transformation, safety, health and environmental management policies and practices.
Risk management
The Group’s main objective is to provide value to shareholders through a long-term sustainable real return on capital as
a result of taking business risk within an appropriate risk framework. The Board of directors acknowledges its
responsibility for establishing, monitoring and communicating appropriate risk and control policies and ensuring
sufficient capital is held to support the taking of risk. The Board also regards the management of risk as a key business
process which ensures that the Group is protected against uncertain events which could prevent the Group from
achieving its objectives.
The Group continually updates its vision, strategy, values and business objectives and the requirement for a robust risk
management process is critical in ensuring the sustainability of the business model. The directors of the Group
unanimously support the long-term creation and protection of wealth of its shareholders and fairness to all stakeholders.
The Board reviews risk including financial, operational, strategic and environmental risks on an ongoing basis. This
review process is carried out to ensure that management continuously identifies potential risk and updates the risk
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profile of the group. From this profile, the Group is able to ensure that the necessary control procedures are
implemented to mitigate such risk and, in addition, management is able to respond timeously to any exposure to risk.
Strategic and business risk
Strategic risk is the risk that the Group’s future business plans and strategies may be inadequate to prevent financial
loss or protect the Group’s competitive position and shareholders’ returns. Negative business risk arises from
unexpected losses due to changes in business volumes, margins and costs.
The directors recognise that the business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected in the
future due to any of the risks outlined below:
Political, social and economic conditions
The Group is incorporated and operates in South Africa and therefore the country’s political, social and economic
conditions are relevant.
South Africa faces many challenges in overcoming substantial inequalities in levels of social and economic development
among people. The South African government has taken a number of significant steps towards addressing the political
tensions and social and economic problems in South Africa, although certain problems still exist but will reduce with
time. While South Africa features a highly developed financial and legal infrastructure at the core of its economy, it
presently has high levels of unemployment, poverty and crime. Particular consideration includes how the South African
Government will ultimately address such tensions and problems, to what extent its efforts will be successful, the political,
social and economic consequences of such efforts and the effect on South African businesses of the continuing
integration of the South African economy with the economies of the rest of the world. The economic direction of South
Africa may be influenced by the extent to which the South African government, organised labour and business are able
to agree upon common goals and the means of achieving them. While the Group believes that the economic sentiment
is positive for the future, these political, social and economic problems may have a negative impact on the South African
economy. The board of directors will engage with government as required to mitigate the effect of these conditions on
the Group.
Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) is an integral part of the South African government’s economic
transformation strategy. The Group is committed to the concept of broad-based black economic empowerment and
actively promotes the empowerment of staff members and the community in which it operates. A BBBEE total score of
89.85 was scored in January 2015 by Nutritional Foods affording the division with a level Two contribution status.
Key personnel
The Group’s performance depends to a large extent on the efforts and abilities of its key personnel and employees. The
Group believes that its success will continue to depend, in part, on its ability to continue to attract, retain and motivate
the necessary personnel, including executive officers and certain other key management.
The responsibility of overseeing day-to-day operations and strategic management of the Group depends substantially
on senior management and key personnel. The inability to recruit personnel of the correct calibre could have a material
adverse effect on the business of the Group. The Board is engaged at reviewing the Group’s remuneration policies to
mitigate this risk.
The Group’s objectives
The ability of the Board to implement the Group’s strategy could be adversely affected by changes in the economy
and/or industry in which it operates. Although the Group has a clearly defined strategy and the Board is optimistic about
its prospects, there can be no guarantee that its objectives will be achieved on a timely basis or at all. The Group’s
ability to attract new growth opportunities is also dependent on the maintenance of its reputation.
Competition
The Group competes with numerous other local and international companies and individuals, including larger
competitors with access to greater financial, technical and other resources than the Group, which may give them a
competitive advantage in the market.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a formally constituted sub-committee of the Board of Directors and in
addition to having specific statutory responsibilities to the shareholders in terms of the South African Companies Act, it
assists the Board through advising and making submissions on financial reporting, oversight of the risk management
process and internal financial controls, external audit functions and statutory and regulatory compliance of the Group.
Terms of Reference
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has adopted formal terms of reference that have been approved by the
Board and has executed its duties during the past financial year in accordance with these terms of reference. These
terms of reference are regularly reviewed and updated where necessary.
Composition
During the current year the committee consisted of three independent non-executive directors. TR Hendry resigned as a
Director of the company on 12 February 2016 and as a member of the committee and AR Pinfold was appointed on 26
February 2016 to replace him and Dr C Kapnias was appointed the Chairman. The remaining committee members
continued in office and as at 29 February 2016 as well as after year end the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised:
Name

Qualifications

Period Served

TR Hendry (Chairman)

BCompt (Hons) CA (SA)

22 June 2011 to 12 February 2016

GR Wambach

Dr C Kapnias (Chairman)

AR Pinfold

Marketing and Management
Diploma, Business
Management (MDP), ILPA
Health Benefit Management
MBChB (UCT), BLS, ATLS
with a vast experience in
financial matters with owning
and managing various
business entities
Vast experience in financial
matters with owning and
managing various business
entities

4 March 2011 to date

15 August 2014 to date

26 February 2016 to date

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, Ms JA Etchells (Company Secretary), representatives from the
external auditors and the designated advisor attend the committee meetings by invitation. The external auditors have
unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and it’s Chairman.
Meetings
ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
DURING THE PERIOD
15 May 2015
28 August 2015
27 November 2015
26 February 2016
TR Hendry (chairman)*
x
x
x
GR Wambach
x
x
AR Pinfold
Dr C Kapnias
x
• Director resigned during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings

x
x
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Statutory Duties
In execution of its statutory duties during the past financial year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee:
• Nominated for appointment as external auditors, Grant Thornton and Mr D Nagar as the individual auditor, who in
our opinion are independent of the Group;
• Determined the fees to be paid to Grant Thornton as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements and the
paragraph on external audit overleaf;
• Reviewed and agreed to Grant Thornton’s terms of engagement;
• Believes that the appointment of Grant Thornton complies with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, The
JSE Listing Requirements and King III;
• Pre-approved all non-audit service contracts with Grant Thornton;
• Received no complaints relating to the accounting practices of the company, the content or auditing of its financial
statements, the internal financial controls of the company, and any other related matters;
• Reviewed the draft audited financial statements and annual report, the preliminary profit announcement and interim
statements;
• Met with the external auditors to discuss the annual financial statements prior to their approval by the Board and
recommended the annual financial statements for approval by the Board, and
• Made the following submissions to the Board on matters concerning the Group’s accounting policies, financial
control, records and reporting:
We concur that the adoption of the going concern premise in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.
The objectives of the committee were met during the year under review.
Oversight of Risk Management
The committee has satisfied itself that the following areas have been appropriately addressed:
• Financial reporting risks;
• Internal financial controls;
• Fraud risks as they relate to financial reporting;
• IT risks as they relate to financial reporting and
• Reviewed tax and technology risks, in particular, how they are managed.
Internal Financial Controls
The committee has:
• Reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal financial controls including receiving assurance from
management;
• Reviewed significant issues raised by the external auditors in their reports and
• Reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud.
Based on the processes and assurances obtained, we believe that the significant internal financial controls are effective.
Regulatory Compliance
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has complied with all applicable legal and regulatory responsibilities.
External Audit
Based on processes followed and assurances received, nothing has come to our attention with regards to the external
auditor’s independence.
Fees for audit services are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
Based on our satisfaction with the results of the activities outlined above, the committee has recommended the reappointment of Grant Thornton to the board and shareholders.
Financial Function and Financial Director Review
We have reviewed the expertise, resources and experience of the company’s finance function and are satisfied that
these requirements are adequate for the forthcoming year.
The committee reviewed the appropriateness and expertise of the current Chief Financial Officer and confirms his
suitability in terms of the JSE Listing Requirements.
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Annual Integrated Report
We have reviewed the annual financial statements of Nutritional Holdings Limited and the Group for the year ended 29
February 2016 and based on the information provided to the committee, consider that the Group complies in all material
respects with the requirements of the Companies Act and International Financial Reporting Standards and we
recommend the annual integrated report to the board for approval.
The integrated report has been prepared in line with the best practice pursuant to the recommendations of the King III
Code. The committee acknowledges that the integrated reporting is in its infancy and that the report will improve over
time as practice evolves.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
C Kapnias
Chairman
20 May 2016

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
We conduct our business to make a profit and return value to those who have invested in us through the delivery of an
affordable range of nutritional fortified food products as well as pharmaceutical, natural and complimentary medicines,
with the aim to address the malnutrition and immune deficiency problems in South Africa. We aim to build value for our
stakeholders and other stakeholders by addressing our social, environmental and economic impacts.
Responsibility for sustainable development
The board accepts overall responsibility for the advancement of sustainable development with the assistance of the
board sub-committees. The day-to-day responsibility is delegated to executive management. We understand the
responsibility to the people who enable us to conduct business and the country in which we operate. We acknowledge
that it is important to manage our economic, social and environmental relationships effectively, which should ensure a
better quality of life for all our stakeholders.
Our Sustainability Agenda
Our sustainability agenda comprises the following goals:
- We will strive to be a recognized manufacturer and distributor of superior quality complementary, natural and
pharmaceutical medicines as well as protein and fortified powdered nutritional food products and supplements to be
able to actively promote the socio-economic wellbeing for South Africans;
- We will strive to uphold high standards of corporate governance within our market place;
- We will actively address the impacts of our business on the natural environment as we use natural resources which
are all finite and have to therefore be managed with care and
- We will strive to ensure that we have the right people and culture to meet our goals.
Assurance
We are committed to ensuring that the non-financial information provided in this annual report is accurate. It is believed
that the expectations reflected in this statement are reasonable, but they may be affected by a wide range of variables
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those currently anticipated.
We have taken a number of important steps forward in our sustainability endeavour’s as we progress towards meeting
and exceeding the expectations of the stakeholders, which include the conclusion of the BEE deal with Philisani
Proprietary Limited and the raising of capital to fund the expansion of product base as well as output.
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
2016

2015

R’000

R’000

Sales of goods and services

38 269

37 753

Cost of materials and services

30 109

29 301

Value-added from trading operations

8 160

8 452

69

6 771

8 229

15 233

11 927

12 026

Non-operating income
Total value-added
Value distributed as follows:
To remunerate employees:
Salaries, wages, pensions, bonuses and other benefits
To reward providers of capital:
Interest on loans

710

786

72

86

994

592

To the government:
Company tax
To replace assets:
Depreciation and amortisation
To expand the Group:
Equity

To remunerate employees

(5 474)

1 743

8 229

15 233

144%

79%

To reward providers of capital

9%

5%

To the government

1%

1%

To replace assets

12%

4%

(66)%

11%

To expand the Group
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Risk Management
The Board is responsible for the total process of risk management for the Group and uses the risk assessment monitor
as its main source of information to determine the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management process. The objective
of risk management is to identify, assess, manage and monitor the risks to which the business is exposed. These
include credit granting risks, crime, the shift in spending patterns, and foreign currency and interest rate risks.
Operational and financial risks are managed through detailed systems of operating and financial controls which are
reviewed and monitored regularly. Losses from defaulting debtors are limited by stringent credit application

criteria and clearly defined credit and collection policies. These are reviewed regularly in the light of prevailing
economic conditions and bad debt statistics.
With assistance from expert insurance consultants, risks are assessed and insurance cover purchased for all risks
above predetermined self-insured limits. Levels of cover are reassessed annually in the light of claims experienced and
changes within and outside the Group.
Enviromental sustainability
The Group is conscious of the fact that in carrying out its activities there is a potential risk of environmental damage.
Our underlying environmental philosophy is the adoption of protective strategies to manage and control the impact of
our manufacturing operations upon the environment, at the same time as safeguarding our assets and human
resources.
An effort has therefore been made to educate all employees in best practice so as to avoid causing long-term damage
to the environment or atmospheric pollution through the inappropriate use of plant and equipment.
The following are amongst efforts made to reduce damage to the environment:
- Time switches added to geysers;
- Day light switches added to lights;
- Boiler converted from diesel to paraffin and
- Hot water circulation converted to save energy
Social responsibility
We acknowledge our social responsibility towards the communities in which we operate and deserving institutions at
large. The Social and Ethics Committee was formed in terms of the new requirements of the Companies Act. The Social
and Ethics Committee is made up of G R Wambach, J A Etchells and Dr C Kapnis.
Equality
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and there is no discrimination on the basis of ethnic origin or gender or in
any other manner. A number of programmes are in place to ensure that the Group's employee profile will become
increasingly representative of the demographics of the regions in which it operates whilst maintaining the Group's high
standards.
Employee participation
The Group will continue to have its operating decisions made at the appropriate levels. Participative management lies at
the heart of this strategy, which relies on the building of employee partnerships at every level to foster mutual trust and
to encourage people to think at all times about how they can “do things better”. The Group strives to liberate the initiative
and energies of its people, because it is they who make the difference in the Group’s performance.
A share incentive scheme exists to provide employees of the Group the opportunity to acquire shares in the capital of
the group and to give such employees the incentive to advance the interest of the Group for the ultimate benefit of the
stakeholders.
Employees
The number of employees at the end of February 2016 is 86.
Health and safety
We comply with the Occupational Health and Safety Act and Department of Labour rules and regulations.
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Employment equity
We comply with the Employment Equity Act, No 55 of 1998, and regular reports are submitted to the Department of
Labour. Employment equity committees have been established to set and monitor progress. We believe that no unfair
discrimination exists the workplace.
Ethics and values

Nutritional Holdings shares the commitment to:
- Employee development;
- Participation and empowerment;
-

Wealth creation, reward and recognition;
Respect, dignity and equal opportunity;
A safe and healthy work environment;
Community and enviromental commitment;
Open communication;
Continuous improvement;
Product quality and
Customer service.

The Group endeavors to act with honesty, responsibility and professional integrity in its dealings with employees,
shareholders, customers, suppliers and society at large. Employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring that business practices are conducted in a manner, which in all reasonable circumstances is
above reproach. In any instance where ethical standards are called into question, the circumstances are investigated
and resolved in an appropriate and fair manner.

Stakeholder engagement
As a listed entity, we comply with legal communication requirements. We believe in regular dialogue with stakeholders
and the investor community as a whole. Regular SENS announcements are published to keep the stakeholders
informed. Our website provides up-to-date information to stakeholders. Communication to stakeholders takes place in
the following manner:
Stakeholders and other providers of capital
Website
SENS announcements
Trading updates
Bi-annual results announcements
Annual report
Industry
Member of the South African Association of Food Science and Technology (SAAFOST)
Business partners and customers
Face-to-face meetings
Regular discussions
Staff and unions
Management meetings
Union meetings
Employment equity meetings
Suppliers
Regular discussions
Presentations to procurement committees
Product responsibility
The continuous need for food manufacturers to market products that meet the required food safety standards has
resulted in a review of various statute requirements and industry legislation in order to implement better product quality
and food safety.
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Packaging and ingredient suppliers
Packaging and ingredient suppliers have a major impact on the risk management of food quality and safety and are
managed accordingly. We drive a policy to exclude dealings with suppliers that pose a threat to our product
responsibility. Food Safety Certification is a compulsory requirement for ingredient suppliers and continuous
communication and controls have been established to prevent potential risks occurring. We purchase our
pharmaceutical, natural and complimentary medicines that are registered (or in process of registration) with the SA
Medicines Control Council (MCC). These suppliers are subject to the very stringent rules as required by the MCC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES &
APPROVAL
The directors are responsible for the preparation and integrity of the annual financial statements of the company and the
Group, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of
the Companies Act and the JSE Listing requirements, under the supervision of RS Etchells the Group Financial Director.
In preparing the financial statements, the company and the Group have used appropriate accounting policies, supported
by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates, and have complied with all applicable accounting standards. The
directors are of the opinion that the financial statements fairly present the financial position of the company and the
Group at 29 February 2016 and the results of their operations for the year then ended.
The directors have considered the Group’s past results, expected future performance and reasonable changes thereto,
and access to its funding, material and other resources, and are of the opinion that the company and the group will
continue as a going concern.
The directors are responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain
accountability of assets and to prevent and detect material misstatement and loss. Based on the information and
explanations given by management and the comment by the independent auditors on the results of their statutory audit,
nothing has come to the attention of the directors which indicates that, in all material aspects, Nutritional Holding’s
system of internal controls and risk management are not effective and that the internal financial controls do not form a
sound basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements. The opinion of the directors are supported by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.
The company’s independent external auditors, Grant Thornton, have audited the financial statements and their
unqualified report appears on page 26 and 27.
The annual financial statements as set out on pages 32 to 66 were approved by the board of directors on 20 May 2016
and are signed on its behalf by:
TV MOKGATHLA
Chief Executive Officer
Durban
20 May 2015

GR WAMBACH
Chairman
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DECLARATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary certifies that the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property
Commission all such returns as are required of a public company, in terms of the South African Companies Act, and that
all such returns are true, correct, and up to date.
JA Etchells CA(SA)
Company Secretary
Durban
20 May 2016

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors take pleasure in submitting their report for the year ended 29 February 2016 on the company and Group
results for the year under review.
Nature of Business
The Group is engaged in the manufacture of fortified dry food products and supplements, as well as the sale of
registered pharmaceutical products and complementary natural medicines in South Africa.
Review of Activities
The total comprehensive loss of the Group for the year was R5,474 million (2015: income R1,743 million) after taxation
of R0,72 million (2015: R1,671 million).
The operating results and state of affairs of the Group are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in
our opinion require any further comment.
Going Concern
We draw attention to note 35 on Going Concern on page 64.
Subsequent events
The directors are not aware of any material matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year that is
not disclosed in the integrated report.
Statement of Responsibility
The directors’ statement of responsibility is addressed on page 27 of this annual report.
Dividends
In view of the Group’s current financial position, no dividend has been declared for the year.
Authorised and Issued Share Capital
There were no changes in the authorised share capital of the company for the year ended 29 February 2016.
Level of assurance
These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act, No
71 of 2008.
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Preparer
The annual financial statements were internally compiled under the supervision of RS Etchells in his capacity as Group
Financial Director.
Interest in Subsidiaries
Name of
subsidiary

Held by

PB Tully Family
Holdings
Proprietary
Limited

Nutritional
Holdings
Limited

Implio Health
Solutions
Proprietary
Limited

Nutritional
Holdings
Limited

Nutritional Foods
Proprietary
Limited

Nutritional
Holdings
Limited

Impilo Drugs
(1966)
Proprietary
Limited

PB Tully Family
Holdings
Proprietary
Limited

NH20 Trading
Proprietary
Limited
Nutri-vite
Proprietary
Limited

Nutritional
Holdings
Limited
Nutritional
Holdings
Limited

Percentage
holding
2016
%

2015
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Issued
share
capital

Total comprehensive profit
(loss) after tax
2016
R’000

2015
R’000

Holding Company

2

100

1 000

Nature of business
subsidiary

6

(1 628)

350100

177

42

3 881

177

100

Sales and distribution of
pharmaceutical and
complementary
medicines

Manufacturer and
distributor of fortified dry
foods

Distribitor of
pharmaceutical, natural
and complementary
medicines

Dormant

100

Dormant

All the above subsidiaries are incorporated in South Africa.
Details of related party loans are set out in notes 5 and 15 to the annual financial statements.
Risk Management and Insurance
Risk is managed in order to protect the assets and earnings of the Group against unacceptable financial loss and to
safeguard against legal liabilities. Risks are insured at minimum cost with satisfactory cover. Property, plant and
equipment are insured at current replacement values.
Major Shareholders
The major shareholders of the company are set out on page 67 of this annual report.
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Directors
The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:
Name
Nationality
Date of appointment / resignation
G R Wambach*
South African
appointed 4 March 2011
T R Hendry*
South African
resigned 12 February 2016
A R Pinfold*
South African
appointed 12 March 2013
C Kapnias*
South African
appointed 15 August 2014
TV Mokgatlha
South African
appointed 1 January 2015
R S Etchells
South African
appointed 30 November 2013
I Murgatroyd
South African
appointed 24 April 2016
* Non-executive
The attendance at meetings by directors is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on Page 10.
Directors’ Shareholdings
The directors of the company had the following direct and indirect interests in the issued share capital of Nutritional
Holdings Limited as at 29 February 2016:

There has been no movement post year end up to the reporting date in the directors’ shareholdings.
Directors’ Remuneration
The directors’ remuneration is reflected in note 24 to the annual financial statements.
Borrowings
On behalf of the Group, the directors have established credit facilities with various financial institutions for use by the
various subsidiary companies. The directors did not exceed any authorised levels of borrowings during the year under
review.
Corporate Governance
The directors acknowledge and subscribe to the values of good corporate governance as set out in the King III Report
on Corporate Governance for the Republic of South Africa and the Board has confirmed that the Nutritional Holdings
Group has applied the principles of the report. By supporting this Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct the directors
have recognised the need to conduct the business of the Group with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted
best corporate governance practices. Refer to the corporate governance report in the annual report for specific
disclosure requirements.
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Secretary
The secretary of the company is Mrs JA Etchells CA(SA) of:
Business address:
Unit 20 Boulevard Business Park
14 Belladonna Road
Cornubia
Kwa-zulu Natal

Postal address:
P O Box 5026
Frosterley Park
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
4019

Auditors
Grant Thornton continues as auditors of the company and its subsidiaries. At the annual general meeting on 30
September 2016, shareholders will be requested to re-appoint Grant Thornton as auditors of the company for the 2017
financial year and it will be noted that Mr D Nagar will be the individual registered auditor that will undertake the audit.
Litigation
Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries are not involved in any material legal or arbitration proceedings or legal actions,
nor are the directors aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened, that may have, or have had in the
12 month period preceding the last practicable date, a material effect on the Group’s financial position.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, the requirements of the JSE Listing
Requirements, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and
Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council. The annual
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and are consistent with the accounting
policies applied in the previous corresponding period, except for the measurement of land and buildings and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. The significant accounting policies and methods
of computation are consistent in all material respects with those applied in the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of improved, revised or new standards and interpretations. The aggregate effect of these changes
in respect of the year ended 28 February 2016 is R nil. The annual financial statements have been prepared
under the supervision of the Financial Director – RS Etchells. They are presented in South African Rands.

1.1

Consolidation
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the company and
all entities that are controlled by the company.
The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date
of acquisition to the effective date of disposal.
Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

1.2

Significant judgments
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available
information and the application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future
could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant
judgments include:
Loans and receivables
The Group assesses its loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes judgments as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial
asset. The group companies are individually valued using the discounted cash flow method.
Property, plant and equipment
Management has made certain estimations with regard to the determination of the valuation of land and
buildings and the estimated residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment, as
discussed further in note 1.3 and note 3.
Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation.
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The Group recognizes the net future benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the Group to make significant estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income. Two of the Group’s entities where a deferred tax asset has been raised
are dependent on future taxable profits. These entities have not suffered a tax loss in either the current or the
preceding tax period. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and
the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income
differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realize the net deferred tax assets recorded at the
end of the reporting period could be impacted. Refer note 6.
1.3

Property, plant and equipment
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment other than land and buildings is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
Land and buildings are carried at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the
current period. The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive
income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their
estimated residual value.
Item
Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Average useful life
Indefinite
30 years
5 to 15 years
3 to 10 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit
or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item.
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1.4

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it
is incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided for on a
straight line basis over their useful life.
Intangible assets for the Group have indefinite useful lives.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at every period-end.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.
1.5

Investments in subsidiaries
Company annual financial statements
In the company’s separate annual financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment.

1.6

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is
not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the
initial measurement of the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
Classification
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes
place at initial recognition.
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Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the Group assesses all financial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or Group of financial assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the Group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss within operating expenses. The loss is determined as the difference between the carrying
amount of the receivable and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at inception. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating
expenses.
Derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires,
or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.
A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments
The Group will disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on the entity’s financial position. This includes the effect or potential effect of
rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at amortised cost which approximates fair
value.
Bank overdrafts and borrowings
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings relates to
instalment sales creditors. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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1.7

Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised
as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period,
except to the extent that the tax arises from:
- a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive
income,
- a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity or
- a business combination.
Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items
that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.
Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.

1.8

Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an
operating lease liability. This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.9

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula in Impilo Marketing Proprietary
Limited and the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula in Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited. The same cost formula
is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the entities.
1.10

Impairment of assets
The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the
unit in the following order:
- first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and
- then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset
is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.11

Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.

1.12

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
41

It is the policy of one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited, to provide retirement
benefits to its employees. A defined contribution provident fund, subject to the Pensions Fund Act exists for this
purpose. Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall
due.
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee obligations arise from accrued leave entitlement at the reporting date.
1.13

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
- the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and
- a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation. Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a
separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and
measured as a provision.

1.14

Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates and value added tax.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the
service is performed.

1.15

Cost of sales
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

1.16

Segment reporting
The Group has three operating segments: the Nutritional Foods, Pharmaceuticals and Services segments. In
identifying these operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its
main products and services.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker and in compliance with IFRS. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing perfomance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that make strategic decisions.
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An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Group’s other components.
1.17

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. A non-current asset is not depreciated while it is classified as held for sale.

1.18

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of
the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined as follows:
- Borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any
temporary investment of those borrowings.
- Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose
of obtaining a qualified asset. The borrowing costs capitalized do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.
The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when:
- expenditures for the asset have incurred;
- borrowing costs have been incurred and
- activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation
ceases when substantially all activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19

Share incentive scheme
A share incentive scheme exists to provide employees of the Group the opportunity to acquire shares in the
capital of the Group and to give such employees the incentive to advance the interest of the Group for the
ultimate benefit of all stakeholders in the Group. The share incentive scheme consists of a share purchase
scheme.
Ordinary shares in Nutritional Holdings Limited which have been acquired by a Group company in terms of an
approved share repurchase programme or are held by the Share Incentive Trust are classified as treasury
shares. The cost of these shares is deducted from equity and the number of shares is deducted from the
weighted average number of shares. Dividends received on treasury shares are eliminated on consolidation.

2.

New Standards and Interpretations
At the date of approval of these annual financial statements, certain new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Group.
These new pronouncements will be adopted in the entity's accounting policies for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the entity's financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards
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and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the entity's financial
statements.
2.1

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the Group has not adopted any new standards and interpretations that are effective for the
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

2.2

Standards and interpretations not yet effective
New standards or revisions to current standards, have been issued with effective dates applicable to future
statements of the group. Only those standards not yet adopted and that could be expected to be applicable to
the group are set out below, i.e. those applicable to unrelated industries or economies are not dealt with herein.
The group expects to adopt the amendments from the effective dates. Adoption of these standards by the
group in future reporting periods is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the
group or company.

Standard
IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

IFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

IFRS 9
Financial Instruments
IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial
Statements

Details of amendments
• Annual Improvements 2012 – 2014 Cycle: Amends IFRS 5 to
clarify that when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group)
directly from being held for sale to being held for distribution (or
vice-versa), the accounting guidance in paragraphs 27-29 of IFRS
5 does not apply. The amendments also state that when an entity
determines that the asset (or disposal group) is no longer available
for immediate distribution or that the distribution is no longer highly
probable, it should cease held-for-distribution accounting and
apply the guidance in paragraphs 27-29.
• Annual Improvements 2012 – 2014 Cycle: The amendments
provide additional guidance to help entities identify the
circumstances under which a servicing contract is considered to be
'continuing involvement' for the purposes of applying the disclosure
requirements in paragraphs 42E - 42H of IFRS 7. Such
circumstances commonly arise when, for example, the servicing
fee is dependent on the amount or turning of the cash flows
collected from the transferred financial asset or when a fixed fee is
not paid in full due to non-performance of that asset.
• Annual Improvements 2012 – 2014 Cycle: These amendments
clarify that the additional disclosure required by the recent
amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosure--Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities is not specifically required for all interim
periods. However, the additional disclosure is required to be given
in condensed interim financial statements that are prepared in
accordance with lAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting when its
inclusion would be necessary in order to meet the general
principles of lAS 34.
• IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments (2014)’ replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’
• Amendments to address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements'
and those in IAS 28 (2011) 'Investments in Associates' in dealing
with the sale or contribution of a subsidiary
• Amendments confirming that the IFRS 10.4(a) consolidation
exemption is also available to parent entities which are
subsidiaries of investment entities where the investment entity
measures its investments at fair value in terms of IFRS 10.31
• Amendments modifying IFRS 10.32 to state that the consolidation
requirement only applies to subsidiaries who are not themselves
investment entities and whose main purpose is to provide services
which relate to the investment entity’s investment activities.
• Amendments providing relief to non-investment entity investors in
associates or joint ventures that are investment entities by allowing
the non-investment entity investor to retain, when applying the

Annual periods
beginning of after
1 July 2016

1 July 2016

1 July 2016

1 January 2018
1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
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Standard

IFRS 11
Joint arrangements
IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

IFRS 16
Leases

IAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements

IAS 16
Property, Plant and
Equipment

IAS 19
Employee Benefits

IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
IAS 28
Investments in
Associates

IAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting

Details of amendments
equity method, the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associates or joint ventures to their interests in
subsidiaries.
• Amendments to provide guidance on the accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business.
• New guidance on recognition of revenue that requires recognition
of revenue in a manner that depicts the transfer of goods or
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services.
• IFRS 16 will require lessees to account for leases 'on-balance
sheet' by recognising a 'right-of-use' asset and a lease liability.
IFRS 16 also:
– Changes the definition of a lease
– Sets requirements on how to account for the asset and liability,
including complexities such as non-lease elements, variable
lease payments and option periods
– Provides exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets
– Changes the accounting for sale and leaseback arrangements
– Largely retains IAS 17's approach to lessor accounting
– Introduces new disclosure requirements.
• Amendments clarifying IAS 1’s specified line items on the
statement(s) of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
and the statement of financial position can be disaggregated.
• Additional requirements of how entities should present subtotals in
the statement(s) of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and the statement of financial position.
• Clarification that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present their notes to the financial statements, but also
emphasising the need to consider fundamental principles of
comparability and understandability in determining the order.
• Amendments to prohibit the use of a revenue-based depreciation
method for property, plant and equipment, as well as guidance in
the application of the diminishing balance method for property,
plant and equipment.
• Amendments specifying that because the operation of bearer
plants is similar in nature to manufacturing, they should be
accounted for under IAS 16 rather than IAS 41. The produce
growing on the bearer plants will continue to be within the scope of
IAS 41.
• Annual Improvements 2012–2014 Cycle: lAS 19.83 requires that
the currency and term of the corporate or government bonds used
to determine the discount rate for post- employment benefit
obligations must be consistent with the currency and estimated
term of the obligations. The amendments clarify that the
assessment of the depth of the corporate bond market shall be
made at the currency-level rather than the country- level.
• Amendments to introducing a third option which allows entities to
account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates under the equity method in their separate financial
statements.
• Amendments to address an acknowledged inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements'
and those in IAS 28 (2011) 'Investments in Associates' in dealing
with the sale or contribution of a subsidiary. In addition IAS 28
(2011) has been amended to clarify that when determining
whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business,
an entity shall consider whether the sale or contribution of those
assets is part of multiple arrangements that should be accounted
for as a single transaction.
• Annual Improvements 2012–2014 Cycle: The amendments clarify
the meaning of disclosure of information elsewhere in the interim
financial report' and require the inclusion of a cross-reference from
the interim financial statements to the location of this

Annual periods
beginning of after

1 January 2016

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 July 2016

1 January 2016

1 January 2016

1 July 2016
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Standard

IAS 38
Intangible Assets

3.

Details of amendments
information. The amendments specify that this information must
be available to users of the interim financial statements on the
same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time, or the interim financial statements will be incomplete.
• Amendments present a rebuttable presumption that a revenuebased amortisation method for intangible assets is inappropriate
except in two limited circumstances, as well as provide guidance in
the application of the diminishing balance method for intangible
assets.

Annual periods
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1 January 2016

Property, Plant & Equipment
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of Nutritional Holdings Limited (“Nutritional
Holdings” or “the Company”) will be held at the Boardroom of Great Wall Motors SA (Pty) Ltd, 5 Sneezewood Lane,
Glen Anil, Durban on Friday, 30 September 2016 at 10:00 (“the Annual General Meeting” or “the AGM”)
The record date for shareholders to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting will be Friday, 23 September
2016. Accordingly, the last day to trade in order to be eligible to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting will
be Tuesday, 20 September 2016.
Purpose
The purpose of the Annual General Meeting is to transact the business set out in the agenda below.
Agenda
A. Presentation of the audited annual financial statements of the Company as required by clause 33 of the
Company’s memorandum of incorporation (“Memorandum of Incorporation”), including the reports of the
directors, the report of the external auditors and the Audit and Risk Committee report for the year ended 29
February 2016 as set out in the Company’s Annual Integrated Report 2016, of which this notice forms part. The
Annual Integrated Report 2016, containing the complete audited annual financial statements, is available at
www.nholdings.co.za or can be obtained from the Company’s registered office on request. A summarised
version of the audited annual financial statements as permitted in terms of section 29(3) of the Companies Act,
No. 71 of 2008 (“Companies Act”), is included as annexure A of this notice of AGM.
B. In terms of clause 26.3 of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, directors of the Company so elected
shall rotate in accordance with the provisions of clause 26.3.2. To consider and, if deemed fit; approve, with or
without modification, the following ordinary and special resolutions:
Ordinary resolution number 1 – Annual financial statements
“Resolved that shareholders consider and endorse the annual financial statements of the Company, including the
reports of the directors, the Audit and Risk Committee and the external auditors, for the year ended 29 February 2016”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 1
Clause 33 of the Memorandum of Incorporation requires that the annual financial statements of the Company, including
the reports of the directors, the external auditors and the Audit and Risk Committee for the year ended 29 February
2016 as set out in the Company’s Annual Integrated Report 2016, be considered and endorsed by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.
Ordinary resolution number 2 – Re-appointment of auditors
“Resolved that Grant Thornton be and is hereby re-appointed as auditors of the Company for the ensuing financial year
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company, with Mr D Nagar being the designated auditor.
The Audit and Risk Committee has recommended and the board has endorsed the above re-appointment.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolustion number 2
The reason for ordinary resolution number 2 is that the Company, being a public listed company, must have its financial
results audited and such auditor must be appointed or re-appointed, as the case may be, each year at the annual
general meeting of the Company as required by section 90 of the Companies Act and clause 33 of the Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation.
Ordinary resolution number 3 – Auditor’s remuneration
“Resolved that the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 29 February 2016, be confirmed on the recommendation of
the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 3
The reason for ordinary resolution number 3 is that section 94(7) of the Companies Act requires that the Company’s
Audit and Risk Committee determine the remuneration payable to the auditor. The board recommends that the auditor’s
remuneration be considered and approved at the AGM.
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Ordinary resolution number 4 – Re-appointment Mr AR Pinfold as a non-executive director
“Resolved that Mr AR Pinfold, retiring as a non-executive director of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation, but being eligible and offering himself for re-election in this capacity, be and is hereby reappointed as a non-executive director of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr AR Pinfold may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report
2016.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 4
The reason for ordinary resolution number 4 is that in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, one-third
of the non-executive directors are required to retire at each annual general meeting of the Company. These directors
may offer themselves for re-election. The board recommends to shareholders the re-election of the director mentioned
above who retires by rotation in terms of clause 26.3 of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and who is
eligible for re-election and who has offered herself for re-election
Ordinary resolution number 5 – Re-appointment of Dr C Kapnias as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee
“Resolved that Dr C Kapnias’s be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the
Company, with effect from the conclusion of this AGM until the following annual general meeting of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Dr C Kapnias may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report
2016.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Ordinary resolution number 6 – Re-appointment of Mr GR Wambach as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee
“Resolved that Mr GR Wambach be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of this AGM until the following annual general meeting of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr GR Wambach may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated
Report 2016.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 5 and 6
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 5 and 6 is that the Company, being a public listed company, must appoint
an audit committee and the Companies Act requires that the members of such audit committee be appointed or reappointed, as the case may be, at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Ordinary resolution number 7 – Placing unissued ordinary shares for purpose of share option scheme under
the control of the directors
“Resolved that 171 559 444 unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company reserved for the purpose of the
Company’s share option scheme, be and is hereby placed under the control of the directors who, until the next annual
general meeting, shall be authorised to issue these shares at such times and on such terms as they may determine
subject, to the extent applicable, to the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the Listings
Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”).”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 7
The reason for ordinary resolution number 7 is that the Company wishes to incentivise its executives and senior staff
through the Company’s share option scheme.
Ordinary resolution number 8 – Placing of the authorised but unissued ordinary share capital under the control
of the directors
“Resolved that, the entire authorised but unissued ordinary share capital of no par value of the Company be and is
hereby placed under the control of the directors of the Company, which directors are, subject to the JSE Listings
Requirements and the provisions of the Companies Act, authorised to allot and issue any such shares at such time or
times, to any such person or persons, company or companies and upon such terms and conditions as they may
determine, such authority to remain in force until the next annual general meeting of the Company.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
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Reason for ordinary resolution number 8
In terms of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the shareholders of the Company have to approve the
placement of the unissued ordinary shares under the control of the directors. Unless renewed, the existing authority
granted by the shareholders at the previous AGM on 3 July 2015 expires at the forthcoming AGM. The authority will be
subject to the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements.
The directors have decided to seek annual renewal of this authority, in accordance with best practice. The directors
have no current plans to make use of this authority, but are seeking its renewal to ensure that the Company has
maximum flexibility in managing the Group’s capital resources.
Ordinary resolution number 9 – General authority to issue shares for cash
“Resolved that in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the general authority given to the directors of the Company to
issue any unissued ordinary shares for cash, as and when suitable opportunities arise be renewed subject to the
following conditions:
•
This general authority is valid until the Company’s next annual general meeting provided that it shall not extend
beyond fifteen months from the date of the passing of this ordinary resolution;
•
The securities issued for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited
to such shares or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue;
•
After the Company has issued shares for cash which represent, on a cumulative basis within a financial year
5% or more of the number of shares of that class in issue prior to such issue, the Company shall publish an
announcement containing full details of the issue, (including the number of shares issued, the average discount
to the weighted average traded price of the shares over 30 business days prior to the date that the issue is
agreed in writing between the issuer and the party subscribing for the shares, and the effect of the issue on net
asset value, net tangible asset value, earnings and headline earnings per share), or any other announcement
that may be required in such regard in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements which may be applicable from
time to time;
•
The number of shares issued for cash in aggregate in any one financial year shall not exceed 50% of the
Company’s issued share capital of ordinary shares as at the date of this notice of Annual General Meeting. As
at the date of this notice of Annual General Meeting, 50% of the Company’s issued share capital of ordinary
shares amounts to 1 748 684 090 ordinary shares.;
•
The maximum discount at which ordinary shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of
those shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the
company and the party subscribing for the shares or any other price agreed by the JSE Limited;
•
The allotment and issue of shares must be made to public shareholders as defined in the JSE Listings
Requirements, and not to related parties.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for ordinary resolution number 9
For listed entities wishing to issue shares for cash, it is necessary for the board not only to obtain the prior authority of
the shareholders as may be required in terms of their Memorandum of Incorporation contemplated in ordinary resolution
number 9 above, but it is also necessary to obtain the prior authority of shareholders in accordance with the JSE
Listings Requirements. The reason for this resolution is accordingly to obtain a general authority from shareholders to
issue shares for cash in compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements. The authority granted in terms of this ordinary
resolution number 9 must accordingly be read together with authority granted in terms of ordinary resolution number 8
above and any exercise thereof will be subject to the conditions contained in ordinary resolution number 8.
Ordinary resolution number 10 – Authorisation to sign any documents
“Resolved that any director and/or company secretary of the Company be and hereby is authorised to sign any
documents and to take any steps as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to ordinary resolution numbers 1 to
10, and special resolution numbers 1 to 2.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Ordinary resolution number 11 – Approval of the conversion of the Kenosi Loan
“Resolved that, subject to Kenosi electing to convert the Kenosi Loan, the issuance of the Kenosi Shares by the
Company, be and is hereby approved in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements and the
Company’s MOI.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 11
The reason for Ordinary Resolution Number 11 is that the issuing of the Kenosi Shares requires the approval of NUT
Shareholders in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s MOI. The effect of
Ordinary Resolution Number 11 is that the requisite approval, in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings
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Requirements and the Company’s MOI, will be granted by Shareholders in order for the issuance of the Kenosi Shares
to be implemented.
Note:
In terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements, Ordinary Resolution Number 13
requires the approval of at least 75% of the votes cast in favour thereof by all Shareholders, present or represented
by proxy at the General Meeting. Kenosi and their shareholders cannot vote on the issue of shares
Ordinary resolution number 12 – Approval of the conversion of the Pop-up Loan and Pinfold Loan
“Resolved that, subject to Pop-up and Pinfold electing to convert the Pop-up Loan and the Pinfold Loan, the issuance of
the Pop-up Shares and the Pinfold Shares by the Company, be and is hereby approved in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of
the JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s MOI.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 12
The reason for Ordinary Resolution Number 12 is that the issuing of the Pop-up Shares and the Pinfold Shares requires
the approval of NUT Shareholders in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s
MOI. The effect of Ordinary Resolution Number 13 is that the requisite approval, in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the
JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s MOI, will be granted by Shareholders in order for the issuance of the
Pop-up Shares and the Pinfold Shares to be implemented.
Note:
In terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements, Ordinary Resolution Number 13
requires the approval of at least 75% of the votes cast in favour thereof by all Shareholders, other than Mr AR
Pinfold and hisr associates, present or represented by proxy at the General Meeting.
Ordinary resolution number 13 – Approval of the issue of the Salary Shares
“Resolved that, the issuing of the Salary Shares by the Company, be and is hereby approved in terms of paragraph
5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s MOI.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 13
The reason for Ordinary Resolution Number 13 is that the issuing of the Salary Shares requires the approval of NUT
Shareholders in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements and the Company’s MOI. The effect of
Ordinary Resolution Number 13 is that the requisite approval, in terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings
Requirements and the Company’s MOI, will be granted by Shareholders in order for the issuance of the Salary Shares
to be implemented.
Note:
In terms of paragraph 5.51(g) of the JSE Listings Requirements, Ordinary Resolution Number 13
requires the approval of at least 75% of the votes cast in favour thereof by all Shareholders, other than Mr RS
Etchells and Mr T Mokgatlha and their associates, present or represented by proxy at the General Meeting.

Special resolution number 1 – Remuneration of non-executive directors
“Resolved in terms of section 66(9) of the Companies Act, that the Company be and is hereby authorised to remunerate
its non-executive directors for their services as directors on the basis set out below and on any other basis as may be
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the board, provided that this authority will be valid until
the next annual general meeting of the Company:
Independent non-executives
Proposed annual remuneration
Board members: R50 000 per annum payable yearly in February.
Remuneration is based on attendance at four board meetings, four Audit and Risk Committee Meetings and two
Remuneration Committee Meetings per year and adjusted according to attendance.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 1
The reason for special resolution number 1 is for the Company to obtain the approval of shareholders by special
resolution for the payment of remuneration to its non-executive directors in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act.
The effect of special resolution number 1 is that the Company will be able to pay its non-executive directors for the
services they render to the Company as directors without requiring further shareholder approval until the next annual
general meeting.
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Special resolution number 2 – Acquisition of the company’s own shares
“Resolved in terms of section 46 and 48 of the Companies Act and the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company
(or one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries) that the directors of the Company be authorised, by way of a general approval,
until this authority lapses at the next annual general meeting of the Company provided that it shall not extend beyond 15
(fifteen months), from the date of passing of this special resolution (whichever period is the shorter), to acquire the
Company’s own shares, upon such terms and conditions and in such amounts as the directors may from time to time
decide, but subject to the provisions of the JSE Listings Requirements and further subject to the following terms and
conditions:
•
Any repurchase of shares must be affected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and
done without any prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty;
•
After the Company has acquired shares which constitute, on a cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the initial
number of shares in issue (at the time that authority from shareholders for the repurchase is granted) of the
relevant class of securities and for each 3% in aggregate of the initial number of that class acquired thereafter
the Company shall publish an announcement containing full details of such repurchase;
•
At any one point in time the Company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase on the Company’s
behalf;
•
The repurchase of shares may not be undertaken by the Company or any of its wholly owned subsidiaries
during a prohibited period as defined by the Listings Requirements of the JSE, unless a repurchase programme
is in place where the dates and quantities of shares to be traded during the relevant period are fi xed and full
details of the programme have been disclosed in an announcement on SENS prior to the commencement of the
prohibited period;
•
The number of shares which may be repurchased pursuant to this authority in any one financial year may not in
aggregate, exceed 20% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of passing of this special
resolution or 10% of the Company’s issued share capital in the case of an
acquisition of shares in the
Company by a subsidiary of the Company;
•
The repurchase of shares may not be made at a price greater than 10% above the weighted average of the
market value of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the transaction is
effected; and
•
The Company’s designated advisor shall confirm the adequacy of the Company’s working capital for purposes
of undertaking the repurchase of shares in writing to the JSE prior to entering the market to proceed with the
repurchase.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 2
The reason for this special resolution is to extend the general authority given to the directors of the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company in terms of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements for the acquisition by the
Company or its subsidiaries of the Company’s shares which authority shall be used at the directors’ discretion during the
course of the period authorised.
The directors, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase permitted, are of the opinion that for a period of
12 (twelve months) after the date of the notice of this Annual General Meeting:
•
the Company and the Group will be able to pay their debts in the ordinary course of business;
•
the consolidated assets of the Company and the Group, fairly valued in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) will be in excess of the liabilities of the Company and the Group. For this purpose
the assets and liabilities should be recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in
the latest audited Group annual financial statements;
•
the share capital and reserves of the Company and the Group will be adequate for the ordinary business
purposes; and
•
the working capital of the company and the Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes.
In accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements, the directors record that:
Although there is no immediate intention to effect a repurchase of securities of the Company, the directors would utilise
the general authority to repurchase securities as and when suitable opportunities present themselves, which
opportunities may require expeditious and immediate action.
Special resolution number 3 – Amendment to Memorandum of Incorporation
“Resolved, that, the existing clause 6.4 of the Memorandum of Incorporation is amended to read as follows “If a fraction
of a Share comes into being as a result of any action contemplated in clause 6.2 or any other corporate action, the
Board may, subject to compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements, to the extent applicable, round all allocations of
Shares down to the nearest whole number and make a cash payment for any fractional entitlement. Notwithstanding
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the aforementioned to the extent that the JSE advises of another principle to apply to fractional entitlements, the Board
may apply such principle.
Reason for special resolution number 3
The reason for special resolution 3 is to bring the Company’s constitutional documents in harmony with the JSE Listing
Requirements.
Disclosure requirements in terms of the Listings Requirements
The following additional information, some of which may appear elsewhere in the Annual Integrated Report 2016 is
provided in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements for purposes of ordinary resolution number 10 and special resolution
number 2:
Directors and management
Major shareholders
Directors interest in shares
Stated capital of the company

page [2]
page [67]
page [30]
page [53]

Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names are given on page 2 of this Annual Integrated Report 2016, collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to the special resolution and certify that to the best
of their knowledge and belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or
misleading and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that the aforementioned
special resolution contains all the information required by the JSE Limited.
Material change
Other than the facts and developments reported on in this Annual Integrated Report 2016, there have been no material
changes in the affairs, financial or trading position of the Company or its subsidiaries since the Company’s financial year
end and the signature of this report.
Litigation statement
Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries are not involved in any material legal or arbitration proceedings or legal actions,
nor are the directors aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened, that may have, or have had in the
12 month period preceding the last practicable date, a material effect on the Group’s financial position.
Proxies
A shareholder of the Company entitled to attend, speak, and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy or proxies to attend, speak and on a poll vote in his stead. The proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.
A form of proxy is attached for the convenience of any certificated shareholder and own name registered dematerialised
shareholder who cannot attend the Annual General Meeting, but who wishes to be represented.
Additional forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the Company’s registered office. The completed forms
of proxy must be deposited at, posted or faxed to the registered office of the Company or the transfer secretaries at their
respective addresses set out below, to be received by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 28 September 2016. Any
member who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend and vote in person at the
Annual General Meeting should the member subsequently decide to do so.
Shareholders who have dematerialised their ordinary shares through a CSDP or broker, other than own name registered
dematerialised shareholders, and who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting must request their CSDP or broker to
issue them with a letter of representation.
Alternatively, dematerialised shareholders other than own name registered dematerialised shareholders, who wish to be
represented, must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the custody agreement between
them and their CSDP or broker in the manner and by the time-frame stipulated.
Voting
On a show of hands, every shareholder of the Company present in person or by proxy shall have 1 (one) vote only,
irrespective of the number of shares he holds or represents, provided that a proxy shall, irrespective of the number of
shareholders he represents have only 1 (one) vote. On a poll, every shareholder of the company who is present in
person or represented by proxy, shall have one vote for every share held in the Company by such shareholder.
By order of the board
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JA Etchells CA (SA)
Company Secretary
Durban
23 May 2016
Registered office address
Unit 20 Boulevard Business Park
14 Belladonna Road
Cornubia
Kwazulu-Natal
Transfer secretaries
Trifecta Capital Services (Pty) Ltd
Trifecta Capital House
13 Beacon Road
Florida-North
1709

P O Box 5026
Frosterley Park
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
4019

P O Box 61272
Marshalltown
2107
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NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration Number 2004/002282/06)
Share code: NUT ISIN: ZAE000156485
(“NUT” or “the Company”)
Additional information required in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements in respect of
ordinary resolutions number 11, 12 and 13
Annexure A
1. Introduction
a.

In March 2015 the company applied for the Manufacturing Competitiveness Enhancement Programme (MCEP)
grant from the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) of R2 500 000 to fund a large portion of the Capital
investment required to upgrade the factory in Klerksdorp. As all DTI requirements were met the Company
ordered the machinery and went ahead with the required capital upgrade. In September 2015 however the DTI
announced that they had run out of funds for this programme and suspended all applications. This together
with the adverse trading environment, the Company entered into the Kenosi Loan, Pop-up Loan and Pinfold
Loan (collectively “the Loan Agreements”), during the financial year as set out below:
i.
ii.
iii.

Kenosi Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited, registration number 2008/004005/07 (“Kenosi”), the sole
shareholder being Mr KDK Mokhele, for an amount of R2 000 000 (two million rand) entered into on 7
March 2016 (“Kenosi Loan”);
Pop-up Trading Proprietary Limited, registration number 2011/110685/07 (“Pop-up”), an associate of Mr
AR Pinfold, being the sole director of Pop-up, for an amount of R4 000 000 (four million rand) entered into
on 28 February 2016 (“Pop-up Loan”); and
AR Pinfold (“Pinfold”) for an amount of R2 600 000 (two million six hundred thousand rand) entered into
on 28 February 2016 (“Pinfold Loan”),
collectively (“the Loans”).
The Loans were advanced to the Company to provide bridging working capital of R6 100 000 as well as the
abovementioned R2 500 000 to fund the capital expenditure which was no longer going to be received from
the DTI, to allow the Company sufficient time to negotiate the re-capitalisation of the Company.
The Loans bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum. The Loans are due and repayable on 31 March 2017.
As security for the Loans, a General Notarial Bond over all the moveable machinery and equipment of
Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited has been registered in favour of the Kenosi, Pop-up and Pinfold
(“collectively, “the Lenders”).
Subject to the approval of Nutritional shareholders, the Loans provide for the conversion thereof at a rate of 1
cent per share only after such approval has been granted in general meeting (“the Conversions”) and expiring
on 31 December 2016. Should the Lenders elect to convert the Loans, the number of shares to be issued will
be:
• 200 000 000 shares to be issued in respect of the Kenosi Loan (“Kenosi Shares”);
• 400 000 000 shares to be issued in respect of the Pop-up Loan (“Pop-up Shares”); and
• 260 000 000 shares to be issued in respect of the Pinfold Loan (“Pinfold Shares”).
The conversion price of 1 cent per share represents a 51% discount to the 30 day VWAP of the Company’s
shares on the date of signature of the Loans.

b.

During the months of November 2015, December 2015 and January 2016, Mr T Mokgatlha (CEO) and Mr R
Etchells (FD) were not paid their salaries due to the cash constraints of the Company. The amount forgone in
salaries is collectively R460 000. The board of directors has proposed, subject to shareholder approval, that
the Company issue an aggregate amount of 46 000 000 (fourty six million) ordinary shares to Mr T Mokgatlha
and Mr R Etchells as full and final settlement of the outstanding salaries (“Salary Shares”).

c.

The shares to be issued as a result of the Conversion as well as the Salary shares will be of a class already in
issue.

2. Regulatory Requirements
a.

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the Conversions, should they be exercised by the Lenders, are
specific issues of shares for cash at a discount to the 30-day VWAP as at the date of signature of the Loan
Agreements. In addition, Pop-up and Pinfold are related parties as Mr AR Pinfold is a director of the Company.
A fairness opinion on the Conversions is therefore required in relation to the Pop-up Loan and Pinfold Loan.
The Company has appointed Mazars Corporate Finance as the Independent Expert to provide a fairness
opinion as to whether the Conversions as contemplated in the Pop-up Loan and Pinfold Loan are fair to the
Company’s shareholders. The fairness opinion is included as Appendix 3 to this Annexure A.

b.

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the issuing of the Salary Shares, are specific issues of shares for
cash to related parties at a discount to the 30-day VWAP. In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, Mr T
Mokgatlha and Mr R Etchells are related parties as they are both directors of the Company. A fairness opinion
on the issuing of the Salary Shares is therefore required. The Company has appointed Mazars Corporate
Finance as the Independent Expert to provide a fairness opinion as to whether the issuing of the Salary Shares
is fair to the Company’s shareholders. The fairness opinion is included as Appendix 3 to this Annexure a.

3. Details of the Company
Refer to page 5 of the Annual Report for details of the Company.
4. Share capital
The current share capital of the Company, is set out below:
R’000
Authorised share capital
5 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value
Issued share capital
3 497 368 179 ordinary shares of no par value
(includes 90 000 000 ordinary shares held in treasury)
90 000 000 treasury shares
Stated capital

145 750
145 750

The authorised and maximum issued share capital of the Company subsequent to all the Lenders electing to exercise
the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary Shares will be as follows:
R’000
Authorised share capital
5 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value
Issued share capital
4 403 368 179 ordinary shares of no par value
154 810
(includes 90 000 000 ordinary shares held in treasury)
90 000 000 treasury shares
Stated capital
154 810

5. Directors and management
Refer to page 4 of the Annual Report for details of the directors of the Company.
6. Directors' remuneration
The remuneration of the existing directors of the Company will not be varied as a result of the Conversions or the
issuing of the Salary Shares.
7. Expenses
The estimated costs of preparing and distributing this Annexure, including the fees payable to professional advisors, are
approximately R150 000, excluding VAT, and include the following:

Description
Independent Reporting
Accountant
Independent Expert
Listing fees
Documentation fee
Total

Recipient
Grant Thornton

Amount (Rand)
25 000

Mazars
JSE
JSE

60 000
39 0789
25 439
149 518

8. Directors' contracts
The Company has concluded formal service contracts with the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
which are available for inspection in terms of paragraph 18 below. The appointments are on a full time basis. The
contracts do not include any restraint clauses or payments.
9. Directors' interest in Securities
Refer to page 31 of the Annual Report for details of the directors’ interests in securities of the Company.
Pop-up is an associate of AR Pinfold. Should shareholders approve resolutions 11 and 12, the Lenders elect to exercise
the Conversions, and resolution 13 relating to the issuing of the Salary Shares is approved, the directors interests in the
Company are set out below:

Prior to the Conversions

Executive
directors
RS
Etchells
TV
Mokgathla

Direct

Indirect

Total

38 000
000

260 221
579

298 22
1 579
510
000
000

510 000
000

3

I
Murgatroy
4
d
TR
1
Hendry
C Angus

2

Nonexecutive
directors
GR
Wambach
AR Pinfold

Post the Conversions

Percentage

Direct

Indirect

Total

Percentage

Percentage
change

8.53%

61 000
000

260 221
579

321 221
579

7.29%

(1.23%)

14.58%

23 000
000

510 000
000

533 000
000

12.10%

(2.48%)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

237
500

-

237
500

0.01%

237
500

-

237 500

0.01%

1 328
334

0.03%

(0.01%)

1 113
083 594

25.28%

12.32%

1 328
334
111
845
015

341 238
579

1 328
334
453
083
594

Notes:
1 Resigned on 12 February 2016
2 Resigned on 2 March 2015
3 Through shareholding of Philisani
4 Resigned on 8 August 2016

0.04%
12.95%

1 328
334
371
845
015

741 238
579

Other than disclosed in this document no other director of the Company who has resigned in the preceding 18 months
holds any shares in the Company.
Other than disclosed in this documents, none of the existing directors, or any of the directors of the Company that have
resigned in the last 18 months have any material beneficial interest in transactions in the current or previous financial
year or previous years where there is any outstanding performance.
10. Directors' responsibility statement
The Directors, whose names are given on page 4 of the Annual Report, collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information given in relation to ordinary resolutions numbers 11, 12 and 13 and
certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any
statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that
ordinary resolutions number 11, 12 and 13 contain all information required by the JSE Listings Requirements.
11. Share trading history
Set out in the table below are the aggregate volumes and values and the highest and lowest prices traded in the
Company’s shares in respect of:
• each month over the 12 months prior to the date of posting of the annual report; and
• each day over the 30 days preceding the date of posting of the annual report.
High
(cents)

Low
(cents)

Value
(cents)

Volume

Date

High

Low

Value

Volume

2016/07/31

2

0

16184

1500476

2016/06/30

2

0

133192

11429029

2016/05/31

2

0

135675

11681833

2016/04/30

2

1

358465

20281690

2016/03/31

2

0

109339

6620680

2016/02/29

2

0

105021

5581575

2016/01/31

3

0

391437

19145018

2015/12/31

3

0

79846

3426727

2015/11/30

3

0

230277

9298020

2015/10/31

4

0

523132

19159076

2015/09/30

3

0

181839

7890863

2015/08/31

4

2

843502

31112747

2015/07/31

4

3

270200

8199599

2016/07/28

1

1

1464

146400

2016/07/27

2

1

1090

69000

2016/07/26

2

2

500

25000

2016/07/25

2

1

7571

691051

2016/07/22

2

2

96

4800

2016/07/21

2

1

431

22800

2016/07/20

2

1

957

56788

2016/07/19

2

2

20866

1043341

2016/07/18

2

1

11549

1114996

2016/07/15

2

2

37

1850

2016/07/14

1

1

100

10000

Monthly

Daily

2016/07/13

2

2

919

45982

2016/07/12

1

1

17133

1713321

2016/07/11

2

1

16150

815000

2016/07/08

1

1

7244

724406

2016/07/07

1

1

300

30000

2016/07/06

2

2

144

7200

2016/07/05

2

2

1126

56300

2016/07/04

2

1

7370

682570

2016/07/01

0

0

0

0

2016/06/30

2

1

4490

227632

2016/06/29

2

2

904

45200

12. Overview of business and prospect of the Company
The detailed overview of the business operations and the prospects of the Company are set out on page 20 of the
Annual Report.
13. Litigation statement
Refer to page 31 of the Annual Report for the litigation statement.
14. Financial effects
The pro forma financial effects of the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary Shares, as set out below, are the
responsibility of the directors of the Company. The pro forma financial effects are presented in a manner consistent with
the basis on which the historical financial information of the Company has been prepared and in terms of the Company’s
accounting policies. The pro forma financial effects have been presented for illustrative purposes only and, because of
their nature, may not give a fair reflection of the Company’s financial position, changes in equity and results of
operations post the implementation of the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary Shares.
These pro forma financial effects as set out below should be read in conjunction with the pro forma statement of
financial position as set out in Appendix 1 of this Annexure A, together with the assumptions upon which the financial
effects are based, as indicated in the notes thereto in Annexure A.
The independent reporting accountants’ report on the pro forma financial information appears at Appendix 2 to this
Annexure A.
The table below sets out the pro forma financial effects of the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary Shares on the
Company, based on the audited financial results for the financial year ended 29 February 2016.

Basic and
diluted loss
per share
(cents)
Headline
loss per
share
(cents)
Net asset
value per
share
(cents)
Net
tangible

Pro forma
before the
Conversio
ns

Pro forma after
the Conversion
1

Change
(%)

Pro forma after
the Conversion 2

Change
(%)

Pro forma
after the
Conversion
3

Change
(%)

0.16

0.12

28.1%

0.15

9.3%

0.16

0.0%

0.16

0.12

28.1%

0.15

9.3%

0.16

0.0%

1.18

1.15

-2.5%

1.17

-0.8%

1.18

0.0%

asset value
per share
(cents)
Weighted
average
number of
shares in
issue
(‘000)
Number of
shares in
issue
(‘000)

0.77

0.81

4.7%

0.79

1.6%

0.78

0.4%

3 407 368

4 067 368

19.4%

3 607 368

5.9%

3 453 368

1.4%

3 407 368

4 067 368

19.4%

3 607 368

5.9%

3 453 368

1.4%

Notes:

1. The "Audited 29 February 2016" has been extracted, without adjustment, from the audited financial statements
of Nutritional Holdings Limited for the financial year ended 29 February 2016.

2. The pro forma information has been disclosed for each conversion as if it is the only one converted.
3. The "Pro forma after the Conversion 1" column is based on the assumption that 660,000,000 NUT ordinary
shares will be issued to Pop-Up Trading 39 Pty Ltd and AR Pinfold for a total consideration of R6.6 million.

4. The "Pro forma after the Conversion 2" column is based on the assumption that 200,000,000 NUT ordinary
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

shares will be issued to Kenosi for a total consideration of R2 million. The R2 million was received after 29
February 2016 and this receipt has been included in the “Pro forma after the Conversion 2” column.
The "Pro forma after the Conversion 3" column is based on the assumption that 46,000,000 NUT ordinary
shares will be issued to Executive Directors for a total consideration of R460 000. There is no IFRS 2 charge
given the fair value range provided by the Mazars Corporate Finance as set out in Appendix 3.
Once-off transaction costs of approximately R149 517 have been capitalised, comprising advisor fees and JSE
fees. These fees have been capitalised for each conversion based on the proportion of such costs to the total
costs.
The related party loans are settled with the conversion of the loans in the case of Conversion 1 and 2. In the
case of Conversion 3 an “interest free” accrual is settled, therefore only Conversion 1 and 2 have adjustments
on the interest paid.
A tax rate of 28% is assumed for the pro forma adjustments.
All adjustments above will have a continuing effect except where otherwise stated.

15. Directors’ recommendation
a.

The Directors have considered the terms and conditions of the Conversions and the issue of the Salary Shares
and are of the opinion that the terms thereof are fair and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders.

b.

The directors entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting recommend that the Company’s shareholders vote
in favour of the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

c.

For the purposes of paragraph 15.2, Mr AR Pinfold and his associates will be not be eligible to vote on the
resolution to approve the conversion of the Pop-up Loan and Pinfold Loan. Furthermore, neither Mr RS
Etchells, Mr T Mokgatlha or Kenosi and their associates will be eligible to vote on the approval of the issue of
the Salary Shares.

16. Advisors’ consents
Grant Thornton, the Companies reporting accountant and Mazars Corporate Finance, the Independent Expert, and PSG
Capital, the Companies designated advisor, have consented in writing to act in the capacity as reporting accountant,
independent expert and designated advisor as the case may be, and to their names being stated in this annexure and
have consented to the reference to their report in the form and context in which they appear, and have not withdrawn
their consent prior to the publication of the annual report.
17. Material contracts and restrictive funding arrangements
Other than the agreements set out in paragraph 1 above, no material contracts or restrictive funding arrangements have
been entered into by the Company, being a contract entered into otherwise than in the ordinary course of business,
within the two years preceding the date of this annual report or entered into at any time and containing an obligation or

settlement that is material to the Company at the date of the annual report, that contains an obligation or settlement that
is material to the Company as at the date of this annual report. No conversion rights or redemption rights have been
granted by the Company to any party other than those disclosed herein.
18. Documents available for inspection
The following documents, or copies thereof, will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and
PSG, the Company’s designated advisor, during normal business hours, from the date of this Notice of AGM up to and
including 30 September 2016:
•

the Loan Agreements;

•

the fairness opinion;

•

the MOI of the Company and its subsidiaries;

•

copies of service agreements with directors; and

•

the annual financial statements of the Company for the past three financial years ended respectively 28
February 2014, 28 February 2015 and 29 February 2016. All annual reports of the Company are available on its
website at www.nholdings.co.za.

•

Independent reporting accountant’s assurance report on the compilation of pro forma financial information
included in Annexure A to the 2016 Annual Report

19. Advisors details
The details of the Company’s Designated Advisor and Auditor are set out in the Corporate Information section of the
Annual Report.
The details of Mazars Corporate Finance are:
Mazars Corporate Finance Proprietary Limited
54 Glenhove Road
Melrose Arch Estate
2076
(PO Box 6697, Johannesburg, 2000)

Signed at Umhlanga by R Etchells on behalf of all the Directors of NUT Limited in terms of powers of attorneys
signed by such Directors.

R Etchells
Financial director
1 August 2016

APPENDIX 1 – PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The pro forma financial information of NUT at 29 February 2016 is set out below. The pro forma information has been
prepared for illustrative purposes only to provide information on how the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary
Shares might have impacted on the financial position, changes in equity and results of operations of NUT. Due to its
nature, the pro forma financial information may not fairly present NUT’s financial position, changes in equity, results of
operations or cash flows after the implementation of the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary Shares. The pro
forma financial information is presented in a manner that is consistent with the accounting policies of NUT.
The pro forma financial information as set out below should be read in conjunction with the report of the Independent
Reporting Accountants to NUT, which is included as Appendix 2 to this Annexure A.
The Directors of NUT are responsible for the preparation of the pro forma financial information. The pro forma
statement of financial position of NUT has been prepared on the assumption that the Conversions and the issuing of the
Salary Shares was effected on 29 February 2016, while the pro forma income statement and the pro forma statement of
comprehensive income have been prepared on the assumption that the Conversions and the issuing of the Salary
Shares was effected on 1 March 2015.

APPENDIX 2 – INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON THE PRO FORMA
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

APPENDIX 3 – FAIRNESS OPINION OF THE INDEPENDENT EXPERT

5 August 2016
The Directors
Nutritional Holdings Limited
Suite 3
49 Richefond Circle
Ridgeside Office Estate
Umhlanga Rocks
4319

ATTENTION: THE DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENT FAIRNESS OPINION IN RESPECT OF THE PROPOSED CONVERSION OF A
RELATED PARTY LOAN AND A PAYMENT MADE TO RELATED PARTIES IN RESPECT OF
OUTSTANDING SALARIES BY WAY OF SHARES IN NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (“NHL”
OR “THE COMPANY”)
INTRODUCTION
NHL have entered into an agreement whereby it will convert related party loans into shares in NHL at
an issue price of one cent per share. In addition, NHL are looking to make a payment to employees in
respect of outstanding salaries at a rate of one cent per share.
The 30-day VWAP of the shares as at 29 February 2016 was 1.95 cents per share, thus the issue of
shares is at a 48.7% discount to the 30-day VWAP.
We have been appointed by the Board of Directors to advise the shareholders of NHL whether, in our
opinion, the above transaction is fair to the shareholders of NHL.
This fairness report is required in terms of section 10.7 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE
Limited (“JSE”).
PROPOSED CONVERSION BY THE LENDERS AND PAYMENT FOR OUTSTANDING SALARIES
BY WAY OF AN ISSUE OF SHARES IN NHL (COLLECTIVELY “THE TRANSACTIONS”)
NHL entered in loan agreements with related parties as set out below:
•
•

Pop-up Trading Proprietary Limited (“Pop-up”), an associate of Mr AR Pinfold, for an amount
of R4 000 000; and
Mr AR Pinfold for an amount of R2 600 000,

collectively (“the Loans”)
Subject to the approval of NHL shareholders, the Loans provide for the conversion thereof at a rate of
1 cent per share only after such approval has been granted in a general meeting (“the Conversions”)
and expiring on 31 March 2017.
Furthermore the board of directors has proposed, subject to shareholder approval, that the Company
issue an aggregate amount of 46 000 000 ordinary shares to Mr T Mokgatlha and Mr R Etchells as full
and final settlement of the outstanding salaries (“Salary Shares”).
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NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2004/002286/06)
ISIN Code: ZAE 000156485 Share code: NUT
("Nutritional Holdings" or "the Company")
FORM OF PROXY
For use by certificated and own name registered shareholders of the Company ("shareholders") at the annual general meeting of
Nutritional Holdings to be held at 10:00 on or about Friday, 30 September 2016 ("the Annual General Meeting") at the Boardroom of Great
Wall Motors SA (Pty) Ltd, 5 Sneezewood Lane, Glen Anil, Durban.
I/We ___________________________________________________________________________ (please print names in full)
of :____________________________________________________________________________________________(address)
being the holder/s of:_________________________ ordinary shares of no par value in Nutritional Holdings, appoint (see note 1)
1.
_____________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him,
2.
____________________________________________________________________________________ or failing him,
3.
the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting,
as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting which will be held for the purpose of considering,
and if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof and to vote
for and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance
with the following instructions (see note 3):
Number of votes (one vote per share)
For
Against
Abstain
Ordinary resolution number 1 – Endorsement of annual financial statements
Ordinary resolution number 2 – Re-appointment of auditors
Ordinary resolution number 3 – Auditors remuneration
Ordinary resolution number 4 – Re-appointment Mr AR Pinfold as a nonexecutive director
Ordinary resolution number 5 – Re-appointment of Dr C Kapnias as a
member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Ordinary resolution number 6 - Re-appointment of Mr GR Wambach as a
member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Ordinary resolution number 7 – Placing unissued ordinary shares for purpose
of share option scheme under the control of the directors
Ordinary resolution number 8 - Placing of the authorised but unissued
ordinary share capital under the control of the directors
Ordinary resolution number 9 – General authority to issue shares for cash
Ordinary resolution number 10 - Authorisation to sign any documents
Ordinary resolution number 11 – Approval of Kenosi Loan
Ordinary resolution number 12 – Approval of Pop-up Loan and Pinfold Loan
Ordinary resolution number 13 – Approval of the issuance of the Salary
Shares
Special resolution number 1 – Remuneration of non-executive directors
Special resolution number 2 - Acquisition of Company’s own shares
Special resolution number 3 - Amendment to Memorandum of Incorporation
Signed at:

on _________________________2016

Signature:______________________________________________________________________________________________
Assisted by me where applicable): __________________________________________________________________________
Name:______________________________________Capacity:______________________Signature:_____________________
Please read the notes on the reverse hereof

NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
Certificated shareholders
If you are a certificated shareholder or have dematerialised your shares with own name registration and you are unable to
attend the Annual General Meeting of Nutritional Holdings shareholders to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 30 September 2016
and wish to be represented thereat, you must complete and return this form of proxy in accordance with the instructions
contained herein and lodge it with, or post it to, the transfer secretaries, namely Trifecta Capital Services.
Dematerialised shareholders other than those with own name registration
If you hold dematerialised shares in Nutritional Holdings through a CSDP or broker other than with an own name
registration, you must timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the general meeting or
be represented by proxy thereat in order for your CSDP or broker to provide you with the necessary letter of representation
to do so, or should you not wish to attend the general meeting in person, you must timeously provide your CSDP or broker
with your voting instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in accordance with your instruction at the Annual General
Meeting.
NOTES:
1.
2.

3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be shareholders of the company) to attend,
speak and, on a poll, vote in place of that member at the Annual General Meeting.
A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in the
space provided, with or without deleting "the Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting". The person whose name
stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to
the exclusion of those whose names follow.
A member’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable
by that member in the appropriate box/es provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the
Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting, if he is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the
Annual General Meeting, or any other proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the general meeting as he deems fi t,
in respect of all the member’s votes exercisable thereat.
A member or his proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held or represented by him but the
total number of votes for or against the resolutions and in respect of which any abstention is recorded may not
exceed the total number of votes to which the member or his proxy is entitled.
Forms of proxy must be lodged with, or posted to the transfer secretaries to be received no later than 48 hours
before the AGM.
The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending the Annual
General Meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms thereof,
should such member wish to do so.
Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.
Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity
must be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the company’s transfer office or waived by the
Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting.
9. The Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any proxy form which is completed and/or
received other than in accordance with these instructions, provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a
member wishes to vote.E
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